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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$456
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$107 million for the year ended 31 March
2012. Gross margin maintained at 81.2 percent, matched closely
to 81.4 percent in last year. Operating margin significantly
decreased to 10.9 percent, compared to 18.0 percent in last
year, under the impact of increased rental expenses and human
resources costs. The net margin, nevertheless, achieved

improvement due to the one time gain on disposal of property.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The management had increased resources in the building up of
new customer base of both house brands and the European
brands when they penetrated into different cities of the greater
China market. The Group continued to explore the fashion
accessories market by maintaining retail stores for accessories
brands COCCINELLE and SEQUOIA in the mainland China
during the year. The Group had carried out jointly controlled
entity with the SEQUOIA brand owner to operate the retail store
of the brand in Hong Kong. Other than accessories market, the
Group also continued to increase brand image of the main
apparel brand MOISELLE by allocating increased resources in

marketing and brand image enhancement.

During the fiscal year of 2012, the Group had increased stores
in Guangzhou, Chongging and Nantong, China. By continuing
to restructure the sales network in China, the Group aimed at
stabilizing its sales network in the mainland China market and
utilizing the most effective and efficient channels to serve its
target customers. The sales network in Taiwan was expanded as

well as the Singapore market was further explored during the

year.
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To increase brand equity and explore new markets of both house
brands and European brands had been the primary business
strategy of the Group. The Group had continued to improve
efficiency of resources throughout the manufacturing and
operating processes. Increased resources had been allocated to
design and development as well as retail operations functions for

research and development and talent training respectively.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to formulate focused strategies to
increase its competitive edge and improve the market potential
of its products. Refreshed images and new styling for MOISELLE
brand products will be launched and target at both existing and
potential customers. The Group also continues to raise the
customer service standards so that customers can enjoy the

valuable shopping experience in the Group’s retail outlets.

New GERMAIN store in Beijing, China and new MOISELLE store
in Tsimshatsui, Hong Kong have been opened after the year end,
representing the Group’s expansion in these markets. The
European brand, SEQUOIA, has also just opened new store in

Hong Kong this month.

The Group will also take the growth in economy in mainland
China as future focus in business development. Despite the
economic fluctuations in the short term, the long term
development of the China economy is considered contributory
to positive returns to the Group’s brand investments. The Group
is going to strengthen its sales network in existing cities so as to

achieve increased market penetration in the country.

The Group will continue to enhance the brand equity under the
multiple brand strategy. In addition, the Group will keep on
refining the brand images of each brand under the Group. The

Group will also allocate resources in developing overseas

markets in order to gain more potential customers in future.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
most importantly our prestigious customers for their continuous

support during the year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 15 MOISELLE, 4
mademoiselle and 2 imaroon (2011: 15 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 2 imaroon) retail stores as at 31 March 2012.
The Group also maintained one retail store for the newly
launched brand, GERMAIN, at Matheson Street, Causeway Bay
during the year. The four brands were separately managed with
each having its own distinctive target customers. The design
teams for each brands worked out their own collections and
image stories from different creative sources of fashion trends.
The Group’s retail operations, however, were managed to

pursuit for objectives in the most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2011: two) stores of MOISELLE were maintained during the
year in Macau. One mademoiselle and one COCCINELLE stores
were newly opened during the year. With the increased tourists
traveling to and expatriates staying in Macau, the demand of
prestigious fashion apparel and accessories products was
expected to grow and the Group had continued to introduce
more attractive and valuable fashionable products into the

market.

At 31 March 2012, the Group operated in Taiwan market 14
MOISELLE stores (2011: 11) and 3 mademoiselle stores (2011: 5)
in Taipei, Taoyuan, Hsinchu, Taichung, New Taipei, Chiayi and
Tainan. With the expanded sales network in Taiwan, the Group

had managed to continue to penetrate the Group’s brands into

various districts in Taiwan during the year.
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In mainland China, the Group maintained its sales network
under three house brands, MOISELLE, mademoiselle and
imaroon, during the year. There were 57 MOISELLE stores (2011:
61) operating in the mainland China as at 31 March 2012. 38
(2011: 41) out of the 57 (2011: 61) stores were operated as
consignment counters in the department stores and 14 (2011:
15) were retail shops. The remaining ones were operated by the
franchisees. The sales network of mademoiselle was maintained
in the mainland China region during the year. There were 9
(2011: 9) mademoiselle stores operating as at 31 March 2012.
The continued adjustment in sales network aimed at capturing
the most suitable locations in the competitive market and
diverse cities in China. The multi-brand strategies had kept
bringing competitive edge and synergy effects on the brand
building and increase potential in the China fashion retail

market.

The restructured network in the market of the mainland China
region was expected to provide future growth opportunities to
the Group and to increase the brand exposure in the major and
second-tiers cities. Under the implementation of integrated
marketing and visual merchandising strategies, activities in both
Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and strengthened
refreshed brand image and new look design concepts for
products of MOISELLE during the year.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group operated one (2011: one) retail
store of COCCINELLE, an ltalian fashion accessories brand, at
New Town Plaza, Shatin in Hong Kong. The retail store of
SEQUOIA, a French fashion accessories brand, was maintained
at the K11 shopping mall during the year which was operated by
the jointly controlled entity of the Group. In mainland China,
two (2011: one) COCCINELLE and one (2011: one) SEQUOIA
stores were operated in the MIXC shopping mall, Hangzhou and

Taikoo Hui, Guangzhou by the Group during the year.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group maintained one (2011: two)
REISS store of the UK high street fashion brand in the mainland
China in the MIXC shopping mall, Hangzhou. Besides, the

Group maintained one (2011: one) retail store of REISS at the

Elements shopping mall, Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

By establishing retail stores in the shopping districts with high
pedestrian flows, in addition to strategically launched marketing
campaigns, the Group successfully expanded the brand mix and
increased the brand equity of the brands under the Group. The
broadened customer base also contributed to the increase in the
brand awareness of both the house brands and the European

brands operated by the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover decreased by approximately 6% to
approximately HK$455,718,000 (2011: HK$486,088,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2012 as compared with 2011. As the
expansion of sales network in the mainland China had been
limited by high competition of prime retail locations in major
cities, overall performance of the region outside Hong Kong had
decreased during the year under review. The revenue of the
region outside Hong Kong decreased by approximately 6% to
approximately HK$232,126,000 (2011: HK$246,765,000) during
the year as a result. Despite this, the relatively stable markets
outside Hong Kong had maintained the segment turnover ratio at
approximately 51% which was the same as the year ended 31
March 2011.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 7% to approximately HK$223,592,000 (2011:
HK$239,323,000) which was mainly due to the impact on the
retail market by the global economic uncertainties during the
second half of the financial year under review. Besides, the
Group had decreased the development of retail business of
certain European brand during the year which accounted for

approximately 75% of such decrease in revenue from Hong

Kong segment.




10

Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e B AR AR A W

i B Wt wm & g

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEFR AEBZEMNENAES1%  MEFAUH
E&H81% #HBFEMEDHRREMEES  Bit
FRAMHEZERARNRSFE BE=-Z—=
FZA=ZT - BLEEZEEHEZXGHNA
326,623,000t M- ——FAHHEL
312,328,000/ 7T EMA5% - EEFERDOREE
FXEM(EERAETIRARBESHL) IEHER
EENETE® MEEEMNRNEN%(ZE——
&F 1 18%) e

BE-Z-——F=ZA=+-HLEFEzZRAAAE
107,150,000/ T (=& — — % : 78,558,000/
7T) v ¥BIN%928,592,000%8 7T BB A36% © MR H
ENECHRREERES  XFERFENA
52,444,000 7T » BEFE R 33% BRI
TIEHREERRET BT -

RBESRMBER

RAEFE  AEBUABKRNZRBRSEAHESE
BESHE AEERNFEZMBHEE  UER
AN BETHEEENRIEREACEEESES
TEBERBRREZA REAFR > AEEZEHF
MEBREEFEH-NE268,000,0008 T (ZF——
% :171,000,00087T) c R=ZBE—=—F=A=+—
B AEEHESRETESTFERTEEERD
51,000,000 7t (=& — — 4 : 48,000,000/ JT) °
& ® 495,000,000 5T (=& ——% : 15,000,000
TTEFHUEA -

AERBERFERZHBBRR - R-B——F=
BE+—0 RBLERBDEAERLUADEE K
B5.6/5 (CE——F 1 4248)  MAKAMLE (R

TERREREARERTRUREME) BT (=
2% %)

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 81%, as compared to the same
approximately 81% of the previous year. The gross profit margin
was maintained due to the sustained brand image which could
demand higher premium on the products sold during the year.
Operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2012 totaled
approximately HK$326,623,000, compared to approximately
HK$312,328,000 for 2011, increased by approximately 5%. The
decrease in turnover and increase in operating expenses, mainly
staff costs and rental expenses, had doubly resulted in decrease
in overall operational efficiency and the operating margin
became 11% (2011: 18%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 was approximately
HK$107,150,000 (2011: HK$78,558,000), increased by
approximately HK$28,592,000, 36%. Excluding the gain on
disposal of property and related income tax, the profit for the
year would be approximately HK$52,444,000, approximately
33% lower than last year. The decrease was in line with the

decrease in operating margin.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$268 million (2011: HK$171 million). As at 31
March 2012, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$51 million (2011: HK$48
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$5
million (2011: HK$15 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2012, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 5.6 times (2011: 4.2 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2011:

zero).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2012, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$5 million (2011: HK$15 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2012, such obligations amounted to
HK$1 million (2011: HK$3 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group employed 964 (2011: 1,023)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes and a share option

scheme.

11
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 35
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr.
Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He has been a
member of the DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel under
Create Hong Kong since June 2009. He is the husband of Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun
and Mr. Chan Pak Hei. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 53, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 35 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr.
Chan Pak Hei. Ms. Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.
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Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 61, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 35 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 34, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 52, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 24
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 23 years’ experience in property
investment and management. Ms. Yu was appointed as China-
appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as
notary public in December 2009.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 51, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 21 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 58, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the managing director of MaLee Advisory Limited. She
has over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Certified Management
Accountants Society of British Columbia in Canada and holds a
bachelor’s degree in commerce from Queen’s University in

Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 49, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 25 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 42, is the chief operating officer of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 21 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &

Administrators of the United Kingdom.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 24, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. Mr. Chan Pak Hei
holds a bachelor of arts degree in fashion management (fashion

retail) from University of Arts London. He is the son of Mr.

Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2012. The only exception
is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.
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During the year ended 31 March 2012, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H FE AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 4/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2012 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has established a nomination committee in
compliance with the CG Code during the year ended 31 March
2012. The members of the nomination committee comprise two
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen,

and one executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the chairman and the chief

executive.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, three remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

i FE 52 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 3/3
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The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has approved the non-executive directors’

appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent

auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT

HK$

BT R Audit services 1,552,000
EET IR Non-audit services 709,000
2,261,000
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The audit
committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu
Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports
to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, two audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 272
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 2/2

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the nature
and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed. Internal
control is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to

the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and evaluating
the risks. Based on the results, the directors were dedicated to
implement various initiatives to further enhance the existing
internal control system alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 32 and 33.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the

financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

At no time during the year have the director, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 34 to 142.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages
143 and 144.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$107,150,000 (2011: HK$78,558,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend and a special dividend of Hong Kong 5
cents per share (2011: Hong Kong 4 cents per share) and Hong
Kong 6 cents per share (2011: Nil) respectively were paid on 13
January 2012. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of Hong Kong 12 cents per share (2011: Hong
Kong 13 cents per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March
2012 to all shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members on 23 August 2012.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$94,000 (2011: HK$30,000).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in note 12 to the

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the company during
the year are set out in note 23(c) to the financial statements.

Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with

such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. The subsidiary and the employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension

payments or post-retirement benefits beyond their contributions.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Yum Kit, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying,
Helen will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with article 87 of the company’s articles of

association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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EERIRTRAEBRES HERORES DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
ZHEZERKE SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

RZBE-ZH=ZA=+—-HB KXAREBRIET As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of the
BABRALAARHEBEEIE (ERRESRBPE directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
15451 (138 5 R EBE R B 1) BEXVER) 2 IR0 ~ HER underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
nhkESD  BEALRAREESRMERMIZE352 associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
e R EFEcELMARE  RARB(EBE Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
EXRGMERAR (HRXMNBFSFLTRADT L register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
TRADFABLETARNESETES RS NRES as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
B (EEFH D HAEADRARBRI2EER AR Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
mE Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

RROzBmER EEHAEIH

Esps Beneficial interest Approximate percentage ERME
Name of director in shares of interests Nature of interest
RIATLE IV
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 190,872,000 66.29% Corporate/Family
EN 3
2,100,000 0.73% Family
BA
2,100,000 0.73% Personal

(Hfa(1) % (2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
(IS} pegun IV
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 190,872,000 66.29% Corporate/Family
EY
2,100,000 0.73% Family
A
2,100,000 0.73% Personal

(Hiaz(1) % (2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
REBLE PN
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 500,000 0.17% Personal
REZEE BA
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 900,000 0.31% Personal
BEHELL 8 A
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 30,000 0.01% Personal
REELZTL BA

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 100,000 0.03% Personal 25




26

Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e B AR AR A W

B E

Report of the Directors

EERIRTRAEBRES HERORES
ZEBRKRR ()

Bt -

(1) 190,000,000/ Z % B 10 J3 B Super Result
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) % °
Super ResultZ RAS TR LAE (TBREE D)
#EZzE ((HRet ) RBEEELEEDHERE
H46.7% ~ 46.7%8K6.6% c REER K Z T AU
# & 3 R B M Super Resultfi#F48 2190,000,000
KRR PESLBIER -

872,000 7% % BX 19 Jh ENew First Investments
Limited (I New First]) #8 ° New FirstZ R4<J3
HREERBRLZLIDHNERERT0% REER
BLTERBEEHEIEBRNew FirstfiiFE 2
872,000 R 10 P EEE DN A MBS o

2) ARREERBEZTARE  REZIHEERSD
BARZ 2RO REEBBREAEERKE
#mo 2R e

o —ESRETHEARUEEREARE
BESABFEBRRERN - ETESTERESR
ERFRELERD  ZEROER LI FHARR
REFEMRRASBEERLFERAEIRERNSHE
EAMBEAR D RFEL ZEF

ARADESDREAATD 2BREFEERER
B ERFREER T X BRETS]—8 -

BREMEN RZE-—-F=A=+—H K2 F
AMESRETETHAESHESTA2HEA TR
BERAQNTRAEEMERLIE(EERBSFRPE
RGIEXVER) 2R - HEROIESS  #ER
AARBEESFRBEGROIEIDRZBEEFTEZE
MR HARBEETFANEADNTRER
eSS KAE -

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares
held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each
of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested
in the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will
be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2012, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.




BRAEE

ARBER-EE-F-A-+HAKRA-EER
8 (T8 EARRUTREBRET R
E2BRE  FARSHAEEFEEERM ZHBR
RE - ZEEBRMBEREN  YRTFERBER -

REZE ARAESHENBRAEAALAR
HEMAWBLARZ2BES - TRAERSREE
(BRES) AAMEHIBELEBEMERM 2 #
FEw - BHAER  REARERREBRENZE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event such period
shall not exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted.
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BARESTE (E)
EEEETUAERECEREMSR2ROBER
Z 1 15181828,000,0000% - 15 R AR & 5 A HR
DA BITRAZ9.72% c T EI T FUBIT 2R
BEEAENERDTREE BITRMD 230% @ H
BERANTZBRERAE -

BRISEBIAADARR2HE  TARBERE
A (BEZE)AEA+ @A BB - aEmER
ATBRHZBREMS R 2RHBE T EBEBRER
HEBHADTERITREZ1% °

BRIFBEGIAARDARR 2L TRARBERSY
A (BREZA)AEM+-EANE A-—BxE
BRI -—EBIUFPTESRE2BRERI R 2
BROBERESEBRREBBARRRAEZ20.1%K
5,000,000 7T °

RIEZE AAREAAARETESREER
HthSHRERHBEREURBAQARNG - REZE
CE-—F=ZA=ZtT-ALFEAMKITEBRE
ZEBBEHIMT -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.72% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of
the company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior

approval from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted options to
certain directors and employees of the company and other
participants to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary
of the movements of the outstanding share options during the

year ended 31 March 2012 is set out below.
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IR RERT B () SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
RERRR
Rt %A
UMOer oFhare gphons Marketvalue iR RER
ERE&N/  RZ%-28 &R pershare 2SR E
HZ%--% i ZAIt-B fikE immediately  Market value
BA-BEB  ERCRE  EACAR Lapsed/ EB  buerdise before the ~ per share
FERAL Balance as at Cranted Bercised ancelled ~ Balanceasat ~ price ik fiREE  dateofgrant  onexercise
Eligible person TAprl 2011 during the year ~ during the year  during the year 31 March 2012 pershare  Date of grant Exercisable period of options ~ of options
A A A
HKS HKS HKS
£z
Directors
Rk
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - (2,100,000 - - 115 J/42002 23/472002 to 14412012 1.14 204
fat
Ms. Tsui 2,100,000 - (2,100,000) - - 115 /42002 23/412002 to 1/412012 114 204
#EERE
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - (500,000) - - 115 412002 23/412002 to 1/412012 1.14 204
(v
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - (900,000) - - 115 J412002 23/42002 to 1/412012 1.14 204
R#tEELy
Suppliers of
services in
aggregate 200,000 - (200,000 - - 115 242002 23/412002 to 1/4/2012 114 204
5,800,000 S 500000 - -
FHECREBRECSTBRZENINI B HRE Information on the accounting policy for share options granted is
B &E1(n) (i) © provided in note 1(n)(ii) to the financial statements.
BRAVRE SN ADE - HERLE - MEQBRE Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
AMBARRBE-_E——-F=ZA=1+—HLEE March 2012 was the company, or any of its holding company,
MEESEM-—FTMEEETZE  RELAQT 2 subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
ESRFETHAEHIFRE2BEBIRB+NRZ enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
FLAUERBARATSEMEMEABER ZRMGOH any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
BESMEMAE - acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.
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RATBRAZEEE S

REZB-ZHEZA=Z1+—-H  BEAQARERS
KRB RAIE3B Rz AEFE 2R RMALE
BRARRAESREBTHRAEZIN  BTRERA
RARDIABERG T HEEARER R BERA
EXVRBAEARR 2 EEILR ¢

REREE

Name of shareholder

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EEABEENE BT

RB2BRNE DT

HRERGEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

BiaE - Super Result 2 BRAATIHBREE ~ LT RIBE
BEREDREREEL6.7% > 46.7%K6.6% °

BRERER EX[ESREIBRTHRAENES 28
S R[BRESE I MBAHALCAESREET
BAE RN BRADAREEZ R ERM
E3Be e REFECBLMARE R2E—=
FZRA=1t—R HEHEMATREQTRHNAE
EROTEREDILR

EERaNzESR

RERSIARNFEEMER  BALQE  HERD
A -MEBLARARERMERRES-FAEIL2E
AERENT  RARNESHEEEEMEARES -

BHERERXS
BBHREME27 @ H2EXBABALTIZHEL
TRABUAEEHABFERERSZEZR - RIE L
MRAE4A330)MR  FEAXZERRETHER -
FEER 2MIRBUIRRMEZBRE -

190,000,000 65.99% (K72#) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
sections “Directors” and chief executive’s interests in securities”
and “Share option scheme” above, no person was recorded in
the register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party, in which a director of the company had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as set out in note 27(a) to
the financial statements fall under the definition of continuing
connected transaction in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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BUYBHMBEE
BRASEREEERAATRR
(RESHEZMELZEFRA )

EMEERIBENEMEEFINERFERER
BRAFDTEQXT) RHEMNBLR (GEIEEE])
NEEU KRk ERPEER-_Z—Z=-F=A8
Zt-BENGEERAREESER  REEZAL
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BRRGERENER  URTESHBERMER
H M Emgas -

EERGEMBBRRARENER

BELARESALERBETBEMMOASRMGN(E
B BREE) REFB(RTERL) N ERER
HEEMAAZFEUBRER  REBHRABL
ENRBEY UEREUBEBRR2ERTFEH
RERFFS AR T B B AV E RS R -

BB EE

EMNEERRBRMNELEZEREPHEREK
FHER - RMEMRERRBHE o BRI - K
MOREETATREREMAR - RMBPTIMARE
ENAR  BEMEMATEERAEEZREF -

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 34 to 142,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 March 2012, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2012 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2012
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HE_Z——F=-A=1+—BILFE (WUBHF|R) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=F-=F —F-——F
2012 2011
Pt = T T
Note $/000 $000
EXE Turnover 3 455,718 486,088
HERA Cost of sales (85,584) (90,220)
EA Gross profit 370,134 395,868
HAth g A Other revenue 4 5,644 3,235
HAth W= 558 Other net income 4 291 873
SHER D HEMRA Selling and distribution costs (254,059) (247,820)
THRAMEERX Administrative and other
operating expenses (72,564) (64,508)
R Profit from operations 49,446 87,648
b & B A Finance costs 5(a) (1) (1)
REMH* 2 hERE Valuation gains on investment properties 12 3,790 5,000
BiEEE DR 2HEA Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly controlled
(B8]) entity 255 (179)
HEME 2 W& Gain on disposal of property 15 65,516 -
RR %L A1 % F Profit before taxation 5 119,006 92,468
8 Income tax 6(a) (11,856) (13,910)
FREF Profit for the year 107,150 78,558
I {PN=3: 1 Attributable to:
RAREDRR Equity shareholders of the company 9 107,150 78,558
BREF Earnings per share 11
B-%N Basic $0.387T $0.287T
e Diluted $0.387T $0.287T

BBENEZHEEAVBRR 2 —BD - B#
ARBESZRREEFRNEN 2 EBAREFERR

MizE23(b) ©

The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company attributable to the profit for the year are set out
in note 23(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHE-Z——F=H=1+—H1LFE (LABEFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
M = Fr Fr
Note $/000 $000
FREF Profit for the year 107,150 78,558
FREMZEKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(MBRBLIR) (after tax) 10
BEBRBIRIMNEE QR Exchange differences on translation
MRk ZENE5E of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 7,134 10,694
FEERLREEYZ Surplus on revaluation of land and buildings
BH A% held for own use 28,719 71,544
35,853 82,238
FREEUBAE Total comprehensive income for the year 143,003 160,796
TH AR : Attributable to:
AREERRE Equity shareholders of the company 143,003 160,796
BT INECHEBATEREZ -5 The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial

statements. 35
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RZZT——F=A=+—8 (LAE%Z]R) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g--F —F-—F
2012 2011
Mt & Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $’000 $’000 $000 $000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets
- REWE — Investment properties 12 29,010 25,220
—HitEE&E — Other fixed assets 12 373,457 343,506
402,467 368,726
REE DR 2 ER Interest in a jointly controlled
entity 14 - -
Hih & Other assets 15 12,915 50,096
BERESHEE Deferred tax assets 22(b) 8,972 6,793
424,354 425,615
REBEE Current assets
=78 Inventories 16 49,499 63,193
FEWERF R U ER Trade and other receivables 17 54,451 49,349
A EFIE Tax recoverable 22(a) 1,065 334
ReRIBITEX Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 267,908 170,661
372,923 283,537
REBE Current liabilities
FEfTBR A R EthFEAS X Trade and other payables 19 54,322 57,121
FES B TE Tax payable 22(a) 12,112 9,921
66,434 67,042
RBEEFE Net current assets 306,489 216,495
BEEBRBEMEAME  Total assets less current liabilities 730,843 642,110
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFREHREE Deferred tax liabilities 22(b) 50,242 43,471
EEFE NET ASSETS 680,601 598,639
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RZZE——F=HA=+—8 (LAEEFI’R) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g2-=F —F-—F
2012 2011
3 i T T T
Note $7000 $7000 $000 $'000
BXRfkfE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
B AR Share capital 23(c) 2,880 2,822
fi# 5 Reserves 677,721 595,817
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 680,601 598,639
EEeN - —EAA-+\BRENHTHE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2012.
)
)
) EE Directors
BRERAR RIGGE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
EMBINEIWEBRGERER S — D o The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial

statements. 3
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RZZT——F=A=+—8 (LAE%Z]R) At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g-=f g%
2012 2011

& Fr T Tt T

Note $’000 $’000 $000 $000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REBARZER Interest in subsidiaries 13 222,426 224,024
RBEE Current assets
FEWERF R EM WS Trade and other receivables 17 75,109 60,117
RERBITEX Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 7,651 963

82,760 61,080

RBEE Current liabilities
FEf R R EFE(F Trade and other payables 19 2,253 2,330
REBEEFE Net current assets 80,507 58,750
EEFHE NET ASSETS 302,933 282,774
BERRFHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23(a)
R AR Share capital 2,880 2,822
f# & Reserves 300,053 279,952
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 302,933 282,774

EFERRF-—FAAS TN RRELHFTRY -

Chan Yum Kit

FBERINEZHEBATBERR 2 —ZD °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 June 2012.

®RIE

)
)
) EE Directors
)
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )

The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.
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BHE-Z——F=H=1+—H1LFE (LABEFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1R

23]

EE  EfidE
BHAR  Landand #R=
Rx  BRHEE HbRE EARE  Sautory  building REER Ei
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve profits Equity

(i1 T T T T T T tr tr
Note  §'000 000  §000  §'000 000  §'000  §'000 000

RZB-ZEMA-AZEH  Balance asat 1 April 2010 281 58,601 121 14989 9336 1176 274,112 477,216

ZE-%F/-—E2BEEH Changes in equity for 2010/11:

R Profit for the year - - - - - - 78558 78,558
A 2ENE Other comprehensive income 10 = = - 10,69 - 71544 - 82238
PEUEEE Total comprehensive income = = - 10,694 - 71544 78558 160,796

REBREHARTZRH Shares issued under share

option scheme 23(c) 1 114 = = = = = 115
LECREZRE Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 23(b)(ii) = = = = = - (28203)  (28,203)
AEEBERZKS Dividend declared in respect

of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - - (1,285 (11,285)
R=B--%Zf=+-8 Balance at 31 March 2011 2822 58,715 121 2568 9336 188780 313,182 598,639

PA ).
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z——F=-A=1+—BILFE (WUBHF|R) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1HR
BEN
EE  EfRE
BHOE  Landand 8RR
Rx BRGEE HbRE EARE  Sawtory  bulding REER Bi
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve funds ~ reserve  profits Equity
[if:: T r Fr fr n r Fr r
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000
R=B--FMA-AZ&H  Balance asat 1 April 2011 2,822 58,715 121 25,683 9336 188,760 313,182 598,639
8--F/-IFy Changes in equity for 2011/12:
EREE:
EwEs Profit for the year - - - - - - 107,150 107,150
A2 AN Other comprehensive income 10 = = = 7,134 - 28719 - 35,853
PEUEEE Total comprehensive income = = - 713 - 28719 107150 143,003
REBREHARTZRH Shares issued under share
option scheme 23(c) 58 6,612 - - - - - 6,670
LECHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)ii) = = = = = - (36,677)  (36,677)
AEEEERZKE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - - (31,034 (31,034)
RZB-Z£Z4 Balance at 31 March 2012 2,680 05,327 121 32,817 9336 217,499 352,621 680,601
St-BE&H

FBERINEZHEBATBERER 2 —BD

The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

—E=ZA=+—HILFE SABEFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-CF —E-—fF
2012 2011
g3 Fr Fr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $/000 $/000
ReETEH Operating activities
REXEBEE2HE  Cash generated from operations 18(b) 82,064 69,485
ENHIE Tax paid
—ENEBNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (4,803) (2,778)
—EBRHNEH — Income tax outside
Fir 15 % Hong Kong paid (8,470) (9,514)
RETBREZ Net cash generated from
HE&RE operating activities 68,791 57,193
REZH Investing activities
EHBREE=ZEB# Decrease/(increase) in deposits
B 2 8RAT with banks with maturity more
BERRD /() than three months when placed 58,756 (10,713)
BABREEEMNRK Payment for purchase of
fixed assets (18,879) (22,833)
HEBEEEMBIIE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 320 500
2 WFE Interest received 3,515 1,355
HEWMHEZHENRIE  Net sales proceeds from the
R disposal of a property 103,015 -
REZERE Net cash generated from/(used in)
(FFR)zREeFE investing activities 146,727 (31,691)
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited

S b B 4 AT B A )

HEBREmER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE_Z——F=-A=1+—BILFE (WUBHF|R) For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—F-=F —F-——-F
2012 2011
ot = Fr T T Fr
Note $000 $/000 $000 $/000
BMEEH Financing activities
RIBBRESTEIEIT  Proceeds from shares issued
IR 13 T & R0 under share option scheme 6,670 115
EFE Interest paid (1) (M
2RE Dividends paid (67,711) (39,488)
MEFTBRAAZ Net cash used in financing
REFE activities (61,042) (39,374)
BERBEEEY Net increase/(decrease)
#m,/ Ofd) F5 in cash and cash equivalents 154,476 (13,872)
RENZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REEEY at beginning of the year 109,628 122,185
EXgB o0& Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes 1,101 1,315
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at end of the year 18(a) 265,205 109,628

FBRINEZHEBRTHERK 2 —D °

The notes on pages 43 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the group is

set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the group for the current and prior accounting periods

reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2012 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and

the group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the
group and the company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the group’s financial

statements:

- HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

—  Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impacts of the above are discussed below:

—  HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the group has re-
assessed the identification of related parties and
concluded that the revised definition does not
have any material impact on the group’s related
party disclosures in the current and previous
period. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces
modified disclosure requirements for
government-related entities. This does not impact
the group because the group is not a

government-related entity.

- Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus
standard introduces a number of amendments to
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about
the group’s financial instruments in note 24 have
been conformed to the amended disclosure
requirements. These amendments do not have
any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the

current and previous periods.

(d) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

(e)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(i)).

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the group or
company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the group or company
and one or more of the other parties share joint

control over the economic activity of the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the group’s share of the investee’s net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
note 1(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the jointly controlled entity, the group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the group’s net investment in the jointly controlled

entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of the
group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment

of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

®

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

When the group ceases to have joint control over a
jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when joint control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate.

In the company’s balance sheet, investment in a
jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in

note 1(q)(ii).
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(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(g

Investment properties (continued)

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note
1(h).

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 1(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. EEFEE(E) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g HMEEEE &) (g) Other fixed assets (continued)
EMBFFEANYEREENZEH K Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
ERAHMEEARSEE  YHRRER for own use are generally dealt with in other
ZEEEFETBLRST  BTIHER comprehensive income and are accumulated
Bioh separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- WMREREBEEELM MEEBENES —  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
HMEBBRZBEEEEBEEMA charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
SFARBRNEE EEEBEXRY exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
xR of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- MRUEBEE-BEEENEME —  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
MEBSERIIZ BIEHREMGR credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
RIS EEBABBERHE - deficit on revaluation in respect of that same

asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

RENHEEETEEEHEMELENER Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal

L ERSFHEEHBENRESH 2B of an item of fixed assets are determined as the

MEREE  IYRREIHEERERE difference between the net disposal proceeds and the

RER - EAHEBEANEGBRSHEGR carrying amount of the item and are recognised in

REARE RN MASEHIEEER profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any

* o related revaluation surplus is transferred from the

revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not

reclassified to profit or loss.
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(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

(h)

Other fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,

being 50 years from the date of completion.

EFERBEEH UREERE)

Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease
T

10 years

BE+F

5to 10 years

ZERF

3 to 5 years

hE

5 years

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that

would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));

and

— land held for own use under an operating

lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:
- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal

payments;
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(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entity (including those recognised
using the equity method (see note 1(e))), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with
note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount in accordance with note 1(i)(ii).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the

collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the balance sheet date to identify
indications that fixed assets (other than properties
carried at revalued amounts) may be impaired or
an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@i

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the group is
required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(i)(i) and

(if)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

0]

Inventories (continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and

on hand, demand deposits with banks and other

financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible into known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at the
grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(0)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Share-based payment (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the

extent that they relate to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which

case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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1. FESHEBEX(E) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(0)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the balance
sheet date unless the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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1. EEFEE(E) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) FT8%L(#&) (0) Income tax (continued)
RSB MNELEFMSHRAEMRRAESH Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
E0BR  YAFFEE - MEARE movements therein, are presented separately from
FAKEEEETHEEASRHAERE each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
EREABRAEHAE  XEFSUTH offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
TIRRERT - BIAMBIEE E A assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or
FEBIREE  RELEREHEER K the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
SHIELEFIBHAE : current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- BAHAEHEENEEMS & — in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
RABAEEERFHEEEL company or the group intends either to settle on
B RENESRZEENEEZE a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
&R liability simultaneously; or
- RMETEFMEHREENEEGEMS & — in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
LEEMEBELAER—HBHE they relate to income taxes levied by the same
MUTHA—BBBNFAEHER : taxation authority on either:
- BE-—EREHEE N —  the same taxable entity; or
- TEAMNERHEB ELEE — different taxable entities, which, in each
=T8I R RS EFEF A REE future period in which significant amounts
EMEHEBEEEEERAE of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
EEFTSHEE 7 L E 895 expected to be settled or recovered, intend
B RFEEEZR AR to realise the current tax assets and settle the
BHEENBEXRBMERA current tax liabilities on a net basis or
& REKSFRZEENMEE realise and settle simultaneously.
Z8fE -
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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1. EREHHE(AE) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) FBHZHBER EERILEE (H) (p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

(i) BEMEERAELEEE

(ii)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities

HERAEELAQNRAARTHREN
BENERBEEEREERT > MET
ZEBADEERSERBNEN
SVR G TR EMGE  EE
REEERHETENE A G
REF WREBHEHEEEA
AR ETEEERXNRE
STOIZEAE o

fief 5 4% 75 R 28 S0 7R B0 7T BE M ERUE
FERELFHEABBEFELTENG
it FERZEBREAREAE;
BRUNEELEFND IR TN
BAEBBRS - ARFERIZRA
REHREBRETEBREREFE
BAEERR TERBEARABEE:
B8R 20 A5 7 R 35 50 R B9 7T BE M AR MK
BUBRSM ©

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

(ii)

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses

are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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1. EEGTEEGE) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) NEBRE(E) (r) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i) (#) (i) (continued)
EHERBRINERE  BZEE On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
BOMEBEEZRAEREZHEER the cumulative amount of the exchange
BALEZ BN EBFHRRE differences relating to that operation outside
BEFOEEERK - Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

(s) BERE (s) Borrowing costs
HiEE - ZEREEEE (BXAEFERA— Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
BRERFELFIFREABRRHFEEZE acquisition, construction or production of an asset
E)MERELHZEERAYBEZEE which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
ZERRAS o BB E A TEE LM get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
BSIER X - part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

() BABAL (t) Related parties
(1 MEEUTAL BIZALHZAL (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s
RIEREEEEHE . family, is related to the group if that person:
() HZEHIRHARZFER ; (i) has control or joint control over the group;
(i) BEBEEALE & (ii) has significant influence over the group; or
(i) REEREBEF QA 2TEE (iii) is a member of the key management
EEME - personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.
(2) MEFETIEMERE  BNEREESE (2) An entity is related to the group if any of the
BERBEE : following conditions applies:
() ZERHEEEBRE-SEHZK (i)  The entity and the group are members of the
ERF (EEAR - MEAR same group (which means that each parent,
R[5 2 Bff B8 A B M B A B subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
=) o the others).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

group or an entity related to the group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Notes 12(c), 12(d) and 24 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@)

Impairment of fixed assets

The group assesses annually whether fixed assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with the
relevant accounting policies. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the assets would be
determined by reference to value in use and fair value
less cost to sell. Value in use is determined using the
discounted cash flow method. Due to inherent risk
associated with estimations in the timing and
magnitude of the future cash flows and fair value less
cost to sell, the estimated recoverable amount of the
assets may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by the

accuracy of the estimations.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of trade
debtors are reviewed periodically in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of
trade debtors is the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return of
similar assets. The group uses all available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable

approximation of recoverable amount.

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in market trends,
actual consumption may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy of this

estimation.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.
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3  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Turnover
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

- The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

- The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

()

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
assistance provided by one segment to another,

including sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment profit is
profit from operations. Income tax is not

allocated to reportable segments.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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3. EXERIBRE (A) 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y DE|ME (H) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) DEBEE(E) (i)  Segment results (continued)
BE-Z—-—F=ZA=t+—HL*F Information regarding the group’s reportable
E FHEOAEESESITREEA segments as provided to the group’s most senior
ERMUSBMERRT D ERR executive management for the purposes of
REEBATERD B2 ERH T resource allocation and assessment of segment
mT performance for the year ended 31 March 2012 is

set out below:

L BESH #it

Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
“B-CF “E--F “B--f “%--% “%--f “®--%
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201
ZHNNE S & S S S S
$000 §'000 $/000 §'000 $/000 §'000

PREFKE Revenue from external customers 223,592 239323 232,126 246765 455,718 486,088
AHERE Inter-segment revenue 30,189 42,141 32,271 37207 62460 79348
BETERDHUE Reportable segment revenue 253,781 281464 264397 283972 518,178 565436
BATERDHEA Reportable segment profit 28,131 43,843 15380 39,697 43511 83,540
BAERZAELA Interest income from bank deposits 704 223 2911 1,453 3,615 1,676
HERA Finance costs (1 1) - - 1) (1)
ERFE Depreciation for the year (9,265 (6,629) (14,665 (12,905  (23,930)  (19,534)
THRERE Impairment of

-EWER ~ trade receivables - = - (302) - (302)

-BREE - fixed asses (1,857) (169)  (1,779) = (3,636) (169)
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3. EXBERDIEHE (A
by DEB®E (H)
(i) BTFZ2#7 bR 2k

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss

—E-=F —E——F
2012 2011
Fr T
$’000 $'000
Uk Revenue
REATEHRD M2 B W= Total revenue from reportable segments 518,178 565,436
7 BB I 2 5 88 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (62,460) (79,348)
ZEWE Consolidated revenue 455,718 486,088
i Al Profit
ATEHRDWEF Reportable segment profit 43,511 83,540
HAb WA R W& F 58 Other revenue and net income 5,935 4,108
B KA Finance costs (1) (1)
REWE 2 hEWE Valuation gains on investment properties 3,790 5,000
EiEag AR ZER,/ (BR) Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly
controlled entity 255 (179)
HEME Gain on disposal of property 65,516 =
BRBLAD 4R & i A Consolidated profit before taxation 119,006 92,468
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3. REHEDHIIPE (Z) 3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) DE|E ()
(iii) HEEH

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Geographic information

TREFNERODAEEIIREF R
# RINVAEEEEEERGER
A(EEFRRBEE]) 2HEBENE
BR-EFEzhBNENRERM
BBIRVERZUEEE - EFE
FRBEECHBUNENRBEEE
ZEBRUE (HEBWE - BERR
B REEHHE (HBREEQRAZ
RER) MEE -

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the group’s fixed
assets and a jointly controlled entity (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, and the location of operations, in the

case of interest in a jointly controlled entity.

HREF 2 EEFRBEE
Revenues from Specified

external customers non-current assets

—§--f =ZB-—f =B-=f =B—-F

2012 2011 2012 2011

Fr T T T

$'000 $"000 $'000 $"000

&8 () Hong Kong (place of domicile) 223,592 239,323 293,007 262,286
SEPN Mainland China 158,826 183,901 104,858 103,177
=y Taiwan 40,684 36,022 764 988
HitEI R Other countries 32,616 26,842 3,838 2,275
232,126 246,765 109,460 106,440

455,718 486,088 402,467 368,726
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4.

H WA R 2% % 88 4  OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
—E-CfF —E——-F
2012 2011
Fr T
$'000 $000
Hi g A Other revenue
RITFERZFIEWA Interest income from bank deposits 3,615 1,676
REMERSMABLE Gross rental income from
investment properties 689 640
PR A% & WA Service fee income 803 600
MIEW A Sundry income 537 319
5,644 3,235
Hit W= 58 Other net income
HEBETEE2WEFH Net gain on disposal of fixed assets 320 563
EX(FE), W $HE Net exchange (loss)/gain (29) 310
291 873
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5  PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—g-=% —B-—-%
2012 2011
Tr Tr
$000 $000
(@ MWERE (@) Finance costs
RITERZFIE Interest on bank advances 1 1
b)) EIRAX(TEEES (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
& (fit7)) remuneration (note 7))
RERFCR MG EI Contributions to defined contribution
Z B retirement plan 6,938 5,956
¥&  TERHEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 88,588 81,176
95,526 87,132
(c Hf®EA (c) Other items
BB & Auditors’ remuneration
— % E R — audit services 1,593 1,383
— H A AR % — other services 709 374
e Depreciation 23,930 19,534
FE W BR R 2 BB 18 Impairment losses on trade debtors - 302
BEEEEZHERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 3,636 169
TREREY KL Operating lease charges in respect of
HEEH land and buildings
-BREHEEMNRK — minimum lease payments 138,479 136,029
-HEHE — contingent rentals 15,261 14,083
FEWIRE Y %S HBR Rentals receivable from investment
EEMX2,000T properties less direct outgoings
(ZF——%:3,0007T) of $2,000 (2011: $3,000) (687) (637)
TERA (B 16b)) Cost of inventories * (note 16(b)) 85,584 90,220
: FERAH19,294,000T (=& — —F : 0 Cost of inventories includes $19,294,000 (2011:
17,638,000T) » BIEEIRA - TERK $17,638,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
EHEER  FEBETELALRD IS operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the
M EES (b) HY & 2R B X AR o respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in

note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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6. GEBBRARZHAEHR

6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME

STATEMENT
@ HREBBRARZIAEHR (@) Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—B-——fF —E2——-fF
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
FHBE-FRFEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 9,065 5,729
BEFERERIR Under-provision in respect of prior years 5 25
9,070 5,754
REBLE -/ Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
REERE Provision for the year 6,345 9,550
BEFEBRBME Over-provision in respect of prior years (732) -
5,613 9,550
EEFTEH Deferred tax
ERMEECELERED Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (2,827) (1,394
11,856 13,910

82




REBBERMTZAEN (E)

(@ REBBRATZAEBE: ()

R-B-——F2BBANEHERBRENREFAZ
B ERRBFIRI65% (ZF——F
16.5%) st E - FEARLEME ((HE]) RE
ST AR 2 BB D IREEBIERAERER
ZEITRETHE -

RIBEBTFECEMESH AR  AHIRERIE
S5l AEBRIIMB AR ZEREEME
REB-_ZZ/N\F—HF—B8 REFAH
15% BT B ER%(ZFEZENF 1 18% - =
EBENF 120%; —FE—FF 1 22%; =F——
F124%; ZF—ZF 1 25%) o WbHh o AR
JI—EREARE=—EELtF-—A—BEWF
AZE2BHRAEHEZHBEESE  MEAR
ZFAZEBRREABERE0%ZHBER °

BE-ZEZ-—HE=-A=1+—HILEEHBH
REERFMEZHMBARZBARES A
17% (ZF——F 1 17%) R17% (=& ——
F117%) °
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is
calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year. Taxation for the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas
subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates

of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income
tax laws, regulations and implementation guidance
notes, the statutory income tax rate applicable to the
group’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen changes from 15% to
25% progressively within five years from 1 January
2008 (2008: 18%; 2009: 20%; 2010: 22%; 2011:
24%; 2012: 25%). In addition, a subsidiary located in
Shenzhen is entitled to enjoy a tax relief of a full
reduction in the income tax rate for two years from 1
January 2007 and thereafter a 50% reduction in the

income tax rate for the following three years.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan and
Singapore are 17% (2011: 17%) and 17% (2011: 17%)

respectively.
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6. GEBBRARZAEHR (&)

@ HREBBRARZIABHR  (H)

BRIFBIFOR R  BRIAKEARARERNF
Bzt EL¥E—_TELF+-A=+t—A=Z
REL ZBFERZ2IKE10%H REMEN
Bt ARAEBAAENECFIHEBEMR
UeMBARERZERE  HMEELBENHR

BRRDIRZERR  FTAREE L&D K
ZERBRFEMF2HERIELCHES RS
10,087,000t (==& ——4 : 8,514,0007T) °

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $10,087,000 (2011: $8,514,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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6. HEBBRAITRZMEHR (&) 6  INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(b) BHEZIHESTHENREABRFEZ (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
R profit at applicable tax rates:

=F-=F —F-——-F

2012 2011

Fr Fr

$/000 $000

R B A% R Profit before taxation 119,006 92,468

BERENABERBRLIRERS Notional tax on profit before taxation,

BN EARESE calculated at the rates applicable
BRBLADE R 2 B BB to profits in the tax jurisdictions
concerned 20,732 19,134

THMEZ G 2B BT E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 295 293

BEFHRIWA 2R & Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,816) (831)
FEIMBEARAERERS  Tax effect of the income tax holiday of

ZHEEE a PRC subsidiary (3,239) (7,958)
MR LA R R TR Tax effect of recognition of temporary

ERCBBEE differences not recognised previously - (125)
AERRBEBEB 2B BEEE - Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,

NBRAEECH A net of utilisation during the year (3,304) 3,467
TRMEEMELERER Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax

BEEREZHRBELE arising from temporary differences (85) (95)
BEFE (BERE) (Over)/under-provision in respect of

BETE prior years (727) 25
ERHMELH Actual tax expense 11,856 13,910

85




Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e B AR AR A W

S 385 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

86

7. BEEXE@E 7  DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
BRIEBEEB(RRGROD FE161FIR2ESHE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161
mT of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
ELN
EER
ENER Bk
Salaries, ~ BBERA  HEER
EZHe  allowances Dis-  Retirement
Directors’ and henefits cretionary scheme ast
fees in kind honuses  contributions Total
r r r r Fr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
—E-CF 2012
HTEE Executive directors
RAA Chan Yum Kit = 5,726 = 12 5,738
#E Tsui How Kiu, Shirley = 3,776 = 12 3,788
#ER Chui Hing Yee = 2,524 70 12 2,606
REH& Chan Sze Chun - 846 60 12 918
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
REHR Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 = = = 60
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,872 130 48 13,230
—3--f 2011
HITEE Executive directors
RaA Chan Yum Kit - 5,877 - 12 5,889
B Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,794 - 12 3,806
HER Chui Hing Yee - 2,360 70 12 2,442
RE& Chan Sze Chun - 949 60 12 1,021
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
RES Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KRB Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
BME Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,980 130 48 13,338
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o ETESERBREUIBEAQIAR
e BRAR-E-—_-HF=A=1T—-HEESMN
ERBEBREREARTEZEREZFBEEHR
EEEREEBRER -6 -

e RURBYEINCELOESEHZEE
T REEYzHERS2,580,000T (==
——% :2,565,0007C) °

BE#MEAL
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each director
as at 31 March 2012 are set out under the section “Share

option scheme” of the report of the directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,580,000 (2011: $2,565,000) which represents
the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the six (2011: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2011: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2011: two)

individuals are as follows:

—E-CfF —E——-F

2012 2011

Fr Tr

$'000 $'000

FehHEMNE Salaries and other emoluments 1,842 1,543
MAETEAL Discretionary bonuses 124 340
RINET B Retirement scheme contributions 12 24

1,978 1,907
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8. BREMEAL(#)

ZMA(ZE——F  Bmu)MEKRS AL ZM

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

The emoluments of the two (2011: two) individuals with the

EETHEER : highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—g-—% —E——f
$ 2012 2011
£ -1,000,0007T Nil - 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001t —1,500,0007T 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1

9. A4 E IR R EAG R A
AAREERREGFESEFNBE-FCHA

RN B HRE AR AEE6,200,0007T Z5H5R (=
ZT——F : F18255,0007T) °

EMBARER DR AFEREFN 2 H R

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the company includes a profit of $6,200,000 (2011: loss
of $255,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s profit
for the year:

=F-=F —F-——F
2012 2011
Fr T
$7000 $'000
EIARRR B HRER 2 EHE Amount of consolidated profit/(loss)
BRREMEGRERT, (F18) 88 attributable to equity shareholders
dealt with in the company’s
financial statements 6,200 (255)
RE-—ENBRAZRKERE Final dividends from a subsidiary
BEANBEVMEREEZEF attributable to the profit of the
RAF E R RIK A previous financial years, approved
and paid during the year 75,000 60,000
RABRERZEF (HaE23() Company’s profit for the year (note 23(a)) 81,200 59,745

FRENRENTALABERRRE 2FHE

88 N FFEE23(b) ©

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
shareholders of the company are set out in note 23(b).
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10. Hftr2mEKH 10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HitzHW R EHO2BHBEHE Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income

—g--# 2%
2012 2011
&8 BEEX 5 8 BEHEX &5
Before Before
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax

amount  expense  amount  amount  expense  amount
Fr Fr Fr T Tr T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

BEEBBEIMEAR  Exchange differences
BBRACERZER on translation of financial

statements of subsidiaries

outside Hong Kong 7,134 - 7,134 10,694 - 10,694
BRALHREENZ Surplus on revaluation of land
EftReH and buildings held for
own use 36,138 (7,419) 28,719 89,976 (18,432) 71,544
Hih 2 Other comprehensive income 43,272 (7,419 35853 100,670  (18,432) 82,238
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1. BRER 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@ BREXEF (@) Basic earnings per share
EREXABADBREBEAARDEBEERR The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
REE{EEFI107,150,0007T (Z B —— % : the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
78,558,0007T) R A FEE BT Z B M of the company of $107,150,000 (2011: $78,558,000)
HEF 15 #282,209,00008 (=& — —F : and the weighted average number of 282,209,000

282,055,0008%) st E T :

(2011: 282,055,000) ordinary shares in issue during

the year, calculated as follows:

BBERZINEFTH Weighted average number of ordinary shares
—E-C-F —E——F
2012 2011
TR TR
000 "000
RENBTEBRR G Issued ordinary shares at beginning
of the year 282,130 282,030
TEBREZE Effect of share options exercised
(Ht&t23(c) (note 23(c)) 79 25
REREBRZMEFIIE  Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at end of the year 282,209 282,055

90




Annual Report 2012
AR BE AR i

B 285 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. BRER (&) 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

b)) BREBEERR (b) Diluted earnings per share
EREBRADBREAADEEERR The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
REE{EEFI107,150,0007T (Z B ——%F on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
78,558,00070) & & & IR 0 £ ¥ 19 H shareholders of the company of $107,150,000 (2011:
284,857,000 (=& — — & : $78,558,000) and the weighted average number of
284,423,0000%) sTE W T : 284,857,000 (2011: 284,423,000) ordinary shares

calculated as follows:

BERZINEFE (#EF) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
—E-=F —E——F
2012 2011
TR TR
000 "000
R=ZB=+t—BEBRZ Weighted average number of ordinary
JIIL: Sk shares at 31 March 282,209 282,055
BEBBREART 2 Effect of deemed issue of ordinary
B R st 2 shares under the company’s share
THABERBITEERZ option scheme for nil consideration
B (WH21) (note 21) 2,648 2,368
R=ZA=+t—BEBRZ Weighted average number of ordinary
INREF I (#5E) shares (diluted) as at 31 March 284,857 284,423
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12. BIEEE

Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e B AR AR 2 WD

12  FIXED ASSETS
rEE (@ The group
B
£E EER
BAELE
WA A B kAE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEN fixtures,
Land and computer
buildings ~ I¥%E  andoffice ~ MENE
held for own REH  equipment £8 RENE
use carried  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold NGt Investment &
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
n r n r r n T
$'000 $000 $000 $'000 $7000 $'000 §'000
HASMGE Cost or valuation:
R-E-ZEMA-A At1 April 2010 225,800 6,211 2,672 4129 295812 2020 31603
EiA% Exchange adjustments 27 200 384 1,039 3,804 - 3,804
£E Additions 8,672 - 1,877 12,829 23,578 - 23,578
HE Disposals - - (2,545) (14,170) (16,715) - (16,715)
EftRE Surplus on revaluation 89,976 - - - 89,976 - 89,976
B BETER S Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (6,091) = = = (6,091) = (6,091)
MERE Fair value adjustment = = = - - 5,000 5,000
RZB--BZA=f-R  ATMach2O 0828 6AT_ 1388 AR 3044 B0 45T
%! Representing;
A Cost - 6,411 22,388 40,827 69,626 - 69,626
tE-—E--E& Valuation - 2011 320,628 - - - 320,828 25,220 346,048
320,828 6,411 22,388 40,827 390,454 25,220 415,674
R-Z-—-£RA-A A1 April 2011 320,828 6,411 22,388 087 390454 2500 415,674
EiA% Exchange adjustments 2,233 m 198 443 2,985 - 2,985
£E Additions - 330 1,654 16,895 18,679 - 18,679
e Disposals - - (1081) (15144 (16225) - (16225)
EftRE Surplus on revaluation 36,138 - - - 36,138 - 36,138
B BEHTER Less: Elimination of
accumulated
depreciation (8,045) = = = (8,645) = (8,645)
DERE Fair value adjustment = = = - - 3,790 3,790
RZB-ZEZA=f-R  ATMach202 B0se4 G B9 0N A8 B0 4525%
% Representing;
A Cost - 6,852 23,159 43,021 73,032 - 73,032
fE-28-2% Valuation - 2012 350,554 = = - 350,554 29010 379,564
350,554 6,652 23,159 43,021 423,586 29,010 452,596
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(@) The group (continued)
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Bl B
EE ERR
BAZER
DYL kRE
BEERZ Furniture,
THEEEN fixtures,
Land and computer
buildings ~ I¥%E  andofficc  RENE
held for own REH  equipment £8 RENE
use cartied  Plantand  and motor  Leasehold Mgt Investment #it
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
n Tr r T n r r
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000
RAFERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
R-E-FEMA-A At 1 April 2010 = 3,536 15,736 28,788 48,060 = 48,060
EXH#E Exchange adjustments - 90 233 986 1309 - 1309
KEERE Charge for the year 6,091 394 211 10,938 19,534 - 19,534
AERE Impairment losses - - - 169 169 - 169
HEREME Written back on disposal - - (1,863 (141700 (16033) - (1603
EftEBHE Elimination on revaluation (6,091) = = - 6,091) = 6,091)
RoR_CFAStOR | ASiMachon T . .
E@:?—-ifﬁ—ﬁ At 1 April 2011 - 4,020 16,217 26,711 46,948 = 46,948
EXRR Exchange adjustments - 58 124 303 485 - 485
REEHE Charge for the year 8,645 413 1,955 12917 23,930 - 23,930
HEFSE Impairment losses = = = 3,636 3,636 = 3,636
HEREM Written back on disposal - - (1,08) (15144 (16225) - (16225
EffRHH Elimination on revaluation (8,645) = S = (8,645) = (8,645)
RoR_ZRASt-R | ASiMacho2 O SO N e A
REFE: Net book value:
R-%--#=B=1-H At 31 March 2012 350,554 2,361 5,944 14,598 373,457 29,010 402,467
RZE--F=/=1-A At 31 March 2011 320,828 2,391 6,171 14,116 343,506 25,220 368,726
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12. BEEE (&)
(b) FEEIE

R-E——F  ETHEELENEEE
B BArHAEREEEARLERRE - E
It EECEHEREETEE 2 TIER
H O MEBEEZREECE MH
3,636,000t (=& —— % :169,0007T)
GTATHERDHEBAIA) o ATUE KX
BNRBEZESEEMBBEZREEELE

iz EREEMS -

(0 R=ZB——F=A=+—-0 r&EEZR
EMEURSERERRAB AL Z
FHESWAEEBGHEZABRTERAEE
ETEM - HEHBLAELIBEHE
EFEEBRERAR (HEEENRESA
BMMESEE s ET Y HURAEEY
EMBEREHNEBIE KR ET -

d R-ZE—-F=A=+—0 FrEEIFE
BAZIHRESEY)  NDEEALERZY
ERACHBREREEZAMTISEE
BHEATEM o (HETREE T EETGE
RAERLDE (BN EED IR
BRAEREZKER) ET EERE
36,138,0007T (==& —— % : 89,976,000
7T) BEBEEEHE (HEE10) o

i EMiEEE Rt REEYCIER
KEBFIMEINR R=ZE—=—F=AH
=+ —HZEREE®%86,440,0007T (=

Z——1% :88,308,0007T) °

12  FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses

In 2012, certain cash generating units recorded losses
which indicate the related fixed assets might have
been impaired. As a result, the directors reviewed the
recoverable amount of the relevant fixed assets and
the carrying amount of such assets was written down
by $3,636,000 (2011: $169,000) (included in “selling
and distribution costs”). The estimates of recoverable
amount were based on value in use of the cash

generating units to which these assets belong.

The group’s investment properties were revalued as at
31 March 2012 on an open market value basis
calculated by reference to net rental income allowing
for reversionary income potential. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited, who have
among their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location

and category of property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use were
revalued at 31 March 2012 at their open market value
by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties. The valuations were carried
out by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited who
has recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. Revaluation surplus of
$36,138,000 (2011: $89,976,000) has been transferred

to the revaluation reserve (note 10).

Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
the carrying amounts would have been $86,440,000
(2011: $88,308,000) at 31 March 2012.
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12. BIEEE (&) 12 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
() MEZHREFEIMME : (e) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
FEE
The group
=F-=F —F-——-F
2012 2011
T Fr
$7000 $'000
RE® In Hong Kong
-REHEE — Long leases 117,490 99,770
- E - Medium-term leases 160,610 150,250
- EHAE — Short leases 4,590 4,440
BBFEN Outside Hong Kong
-REBHEE — Long leases 15,755 14,292
—HhHHEE — Medium-term leases 81,119 77,296
379,564 346,048
H RELLHEHBECEEEE (f)  Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREEHEREUINEREYE All properties held under operating leases that would
EBEZNEBERRENRE - otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

AEBRKEHEREREYH - EH The group leases out investment properties under
E-RUSHBB-—FZ2=F > LAIRHLE operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
REFNBRMEGIEE - HESRER period of one to three years, with an option to renew
EERFHAE  URRHEES - RELR the lease after that date at which time all terms are
EHEHNTEEHAEHES - renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted

annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.
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12. BEEE (&)

12  FIXED ASSETS (continued)

H RELLHEHBECEEEE () (f) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

FEERFABBRHCEHETARE

B RERESRAENT ¢

(continued)

under non-cancellable operating leases a

The group’s total future minimum lease payments

re receivable

as follows:
A%H
The group
—g--5 -B--f&
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
—5R Within 1 year 391 1,211
—FRERIFA After 1 year but within 5 years - 391
391 1,602
13. RHB AT 2z 13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
AN
The company
—B-CfF —E-—F
2012 2011
F5 Fi
$/000 $000
FEMBM  BHAARE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672
FE Ut 1B A Bl SR IE Amount due from a subsidiary 160,754 162,352
222,426 224,024
EUHEBAGRELERR 2EREETE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free

R EEHTEREERR -FRKE -

96

be recovered within one year from the balance

and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected to

sheet date.
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13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of
the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

BRIRER
A /R
EAZFE BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
A& of issued and big-- |
REELE fully paid-up ERER N WEAR
Place of share/ Group's BE B8 TTEHR
GEE incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABABRHEE  2000RBREEIZR 100% 100% - REER
British Virgin Islands 2,000 shares Investment
of US$1each holding
Always Profit Holdings ABEBRES 1REEIXR 100% - 100% REZR
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
BEARAA BB 100RBRAEET 100% - 100% BER
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of $1 each R & J2 B £
Retail of
fashion apparel
and accessories
EHREHBERAA B BEEERZE 100% - 100% NRRER
Boo Gie Garment Hong Kong 200,000% NEEE
Factory Limited BREET Sourcing of
Z@R1,800,0011 materials and
BREEIT property
Deferred non-voting holding
200,000 shares of
$1 each

Ordinary 1,800,001 shares

of $1 each
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13. R BRA T 2= (&)

13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRARAR
B/ ER
Bzt BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
MR of issued and big-- |
kg fully paid-up BRER LN WEAT
Place of share/ Group's BE 22} TERE
RAER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
BERERRAT B RBREE T 100% - 100% RERR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
BE(FR)ARAT R ‘REREE R 100% - 100% B 1o AR A
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of $1 each BHE5
Trading of
fashion apparel
and accessories
EEEARARAT 0 IRBREEIT 100% - 100% REERK
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
RERGERAF R 1,008 R EE T 100% - 100% REZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
Euro Legend Assets ABEBRES IREEIXT 100% - 100% REZR
Limited British Virgin 1 share of US§1 Investment
Islands holding
AERLR S 100REREE T 100% - 100% REZR
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of §1 each Investment
holding
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13. REB A Bl 2z (&) 13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRIRER
A /R
EAZFE BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
A& of issued and big-- |
REELE fully paid-up EREsR KRR WEAR
Place of share/ Group's B8 B8 TTEHR
GEE incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
tREERERAT B 300,0008% 100% - 100%  SERE R
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong SREEIT RE &
300,000 shares Retail of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
LERERERRA ik IREREEIT 100% - 100% REER
iMaroon International Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
Company Limited holding
WERERRAT i 10,000R B REE1 7T 100% - 100% NERR
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Property
holding
R (EB)BRAT B 500,000 100% - 100%  SERRRE
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong sREEIT REH
500,000 shares Retail of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
RHERARAT B MREREEIT 100% - 100% REZR
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. g MREREE 100% - 100%  BERERE
Singapore Eipiki REH
2 shares Retail of fashion
of SG$1 each apparel and

accessories 9 9




100

Moiselle International Holdings Limited

S b B 4 AT B A )

S 385 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. R BRA T 2= (&)

13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EROTRAE
RE/ER
BRe#E BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
MR of issued and big-- |
kg fully paid-up BRER LN WEAT
Place of share/ Group's BE 22} TERE
RAER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
REERLT ABETREE \REEIXT 100% - 100%  TERHRH
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 RE
Retail of fashion
apparel and
accessories
ERREARAA g2 500,000 100% - 100%  BERHRS
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong BREEIT RE &
500,000 shares Retail of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
HEERBERAF BB 4,000 100% - 100%  EERHRS
Perfect National Hong Kong SREGIT RE &
International Limited 4,000 shares Retail of fashion
of §1 each apparel and
accessories
EEARAT ABERATEE 1REEIXR 100% - 100% REER
Profair Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
HEERARLA R WREREET 100% - 100%  BEHHRS
Regal Dragon Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each REH

Development Limited

Retail of fashion
apparel and

accessories
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13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTRAR
BA /R
Bzt BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
A& of issued and big-- |
kg fully paid-up BRER ARF WEAT

Place of share/ Group's BE 2 TERE
NAER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
BRRERRAF B 1,000 B REE T 100% - 100% ES L
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property
of §1 each holding
ERRERRLR R REREE R 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
ERARLE ZBAERER  10000RERABIER 100% - 100% REZR
Sosuccess Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares Investment
of US$1 each holding
REARERAR ABERREHE IREEIXT 100% - 100% RARR
Timepro International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Investment
holding
ERBEERAT RF EUEEN 100% - 100%  FEEMRH
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau 25,0008 70 REH
Registered capital Retail of fashion
MOP25,000 apparel and
accessories
RERERRAA ) IRBREEIT 100% - 100% REERK
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Investment
holding
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13 INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

EROTRAE
B/ ER
Bzt BEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
MR of issued and big-- |
kg fully paid-up BRER LN WEAT
Place of share/ Group's BE 22} TERE
RAER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
REFHERDF R 500,000 100% - 100% B 1o FR i
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong BREET EHES
500,000 shares Trading of fashion
of $1 each apparel and
accessories
BERK (R BRAT * TE A EA2,100,0007 100% - 100% HERK
Ming Fung Garment The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) $2,100,000 of garments
Company Limited *
#HERE (R BRAF - il FE & 46,400,000 100% - 100% BEHK
Yubao Fashionable Dress The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. * $8,400,000 of garments
ANEEREHBERAT HE LIS 100% - 100% B8 B e
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC AEH#500,0007 AR & T R 8
Wholesale Co., Ltd. * Registered capital Wholesale of
RMB500,000 fashion apparel
and accessories
RYEXBERERRAT hE AMER 100% - 100% FERHBEE
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion The PRC AR®2,000,0007 PR & I B2 6
Retail Limited Company * Registered capital Retail and
RMB2,000,000 wholesale of

* REPEEMEMZAERELE -

*

fashion apparel

and accessories

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises

registered under the laws of the PRC.
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14. REE QT ZRER 14 INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
TEE
The group
—g--5 cT--%
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
W& & A RFIE Amount due from a jointly
controlled entity 14 269
ik B EFE Share of net liabilities (14) (269)
REBREENTZERZFBOT : Details of the group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity

are as follows:

FEERLA
Proportion of ownership interest
BERTR

£ AMRLE BERRAEFE K

RBER ES-$E Particulars ERER
REAFER Form of Place of of issued Group’'s ZARQRKE WELREE TEEH
Name of jointly business incorporation and paid effective Held by the Held by a Principal
controlled entity structure and operation up capital interest ~ company  subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK, 390 A BB 100R 8K 50% - 50% ZER
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HET i 815 % i
100 shares Retail of fashion
of $1 each apparel and

accessories
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14, REE QAT 2 EHE () 14

BERRAZHBENBE - AEEERES

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)
Summary financial information on the jointly controlled

entity — group’s effective interest:

—E-CF —E——F

2012 2011

Fr Fx

$7000 $'000

FRBEE Non-current assets 1 46

REBEE Current assets 9 314

REEE Current liabilities (24) (629)

BEFE Net liabilities (14) (269)

WA Income 1,055 456

53 Expenses (800) (635)

FRERN(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 255 (179)

15. HhEE 15 OTHER ASSETS

rEH The group

HiEEREEE  AHREREMEZES - B
IREE AR —FREE -

R-ZE——F=A=+—0 HtEEGER
EERUEBEE —EYEZELERS
37,499,0007C e A=ZE——FXA+TARB K
EEFTVANRICEREEREALEY
¥ B 5H253,708,000t - HEE R =ZF
——FXRAZTAHZER  YERGEEZE
B EEWEH65,516,0007T °

Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

balance sheet date.

Included in other assets as at 31 March 2011 represented a
deposit of $37,499,000 paid by the group for the
acquisition of a property in Hong Kong. On 16 June 2011,
the group entered into a binding provisional agreement for
sale and purchase to dispose the property at a
consideration of $253,708,000. The disposal was
completed on 29 June 2011 and gain on disposal of
$65,516,000 was recognised in the consolidated income

statement.
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16. & 16 INVENTORIES

(@ REAEERERZTFEEHE:

(@) Inventories in the consolidated bal

comprise:

ance sheet

FEE

The group
—B—CfF —E2——-fF
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$7000 $'000
R AT R Raw materials 7,167 9,660
EHm Work in progress 1,192 1,338
SRR M Finished goods 41,140 52,195
49,499 63,193

(b) BRBMIAFAEBBRZFESEZD

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

M as an expense and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
AEE
The group

—g¥-=% Z2-——fF
2012 2011
Fr T
$000 $/000
EEREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 95,665 96,237
BEMEFE Reversal of write down of inventories (10,081) (6,017)
85,584 90,220
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17. FE WU 30 B L fth P& WK

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

rEE ENNE
The group The company

—E--f —ET——fF ZEB-ZFf ZE——F

2012 2011 2012 2011

T T Fr Fr

$/000 $7000 $/000 $7000

& Wi AR X Trade debtors 19,234 22,066 - -

WK B A B FRIE Amount due from a subsidiary - = 75,000 60,000
BE - AAMEAR Deposits, prepayments and

H i FE U 3K other receivables 35,217 27,283 109 117

54,451 49,349 75,109 60,117

FrERWIRAR R A MERR (BIEREKHEBL
B2 FIR) BHSR—FAREHERBMAX

WM EQRARERERR  REREETE
FH o

All of the trade and other receivables (including amount

due from a subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expenses within one year.

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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17. FEUR AR SR H £t B W K (47 17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@ HREDN (@) Ageing analysis
FEWERREMERREEE S EKER Included in trade and other receivables are trade
MONBRRREBRE) REEBZRRDMN debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with the
mE following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:
FEHE
The group
—B—CfF —E2——-fF
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$/000 $7000
REBEREZIRE Outstanding balances aged:
30 Within 30 days 14,736 13,843
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 3,979 7,631
91HZE180H Between 91 to 180 days 511 410
181H £365H Between 181 to 365 days 8 182
19,234 22,066
FEWRR B ZEEHBEFTI02908 2 Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of
B o NEBEEBR ZE — S B HMNK billing. Further details on the group’s credit policy are set
FE24(a) ° out in 24(a).
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17. FEWRR 0 B2 EL i FE WK (48

(b)

BE W B 2 BB

FEW BRR 2 BB R IR LA AR B RO 8% » BR
FAREEEHWE B BERBENTEMER
X EEBRT - BEBEEEREERIR
e (RBHEET()) °

RERERFAZE2E (BRBERER
R WT

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

The movements in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective

loss components, are as follows:

FEH
The group
T
$'000

R-ZB-ZF0A—H At 1 April 2010 250
BRBEEE Impairment losses recognised 302
1l 85 AT U Bl 7R 08 Uncollectible amounts written off (552)

RZZE——F=B=+—H8"* At31 March 2011, 1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012

—E-—-FMA-AR
—2--—#=A=t+-A

R-ZZE-Z-H=ZA=+—-0  #EFTKE
ZEWVRMREELNEESRE (=22 ——
FE) -

At 31 March 2012, none of the group’s trade debtors were

individually determined to be impaired (2011: none).
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3 45 18 2 FE WK BR X
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:
rEE

The group
=F-=F —F-——F
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
I 2 38 H SR B Neither past due nor impaired 16,500 13,843
BHTE30H Less than 30 days past due 2,079 7,007
BEA31H £90H 31 to 90 days past due 274 928
BH91HZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 381 261
HHEA181HE365H 181 to 365 days past due - 27
2,734 8,223
19,234 22,066

3 4 360 5 =R (B 2 B WUIR FE W R AR
MY EENTHEZEREF -

2 180 5 1B ROl (B 2 FE W iR 3k 5 B2 — dE 2R
FEEERHERZTHZBALEFER -
HREEBEZUBEREHREBRDNA
WRAAUEZYE  REBELR &
EERARLELBRMZSHEBRELRE
BiE - ARE U ER X SHERTHE TR
fim e

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The group does not hold

any collateral over these balances.
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18. BRERBITEN

@ HRERBITEREHE:

18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

X&ME N
The group The company
—g--—% -B--% <-B--—F -2 —F&
2012 2011 2012 2011
Tr T Tr T
$000 $000 $'000 $'000
BITEXN Deposits with banks
-FHAER=EAR — Within three months to
Ep maturity when placed 172,365 10,110 - =
-FHRAR=@EA% — More than three months to
E b maturity when placed 2,703 61,033 - -
-ROERRES Cash at bank and in hand 92,840 99,518 7,651 963
REEBERZHER  Cash and bank deposits in
RITEX the balance sheets 267,908 170,661 7,651 963
W FHAR=M@EAR Less: Deposits with bank with
Az RITER more than three months
to maturity when placed (2,703) (61,033)
REGEERERERZ Cash and cash equivalents in
RERRSEEY the consolidated cash flow
statement 265,205 109,628
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18 CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

BB EREEBIEEZREZ (b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
HER: generated from operations:
—E-C=F —E——F
2012 2011
it = T T
Note $/000 $7000
BR A A% R Profit before taxation 119,006 92,468
MTFIMEHAE Adjustments for:
REME2E Valuation gains on investment
i 25 properties (3,790) (5,000)
e Depreciation 5(c) 23,930 19,534
EE&ERERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 5(c) 3,636 169
FE W BR OB EE 18 Impairment losses on trade debtors 5(c) - 302
mLE B A Finance costs 5(a) 1 1
FEWA Interest income 4 (3,615) (1,676)
HEEEEEZ Net gain on disposal of fixed assets
e 25 ¥ B8R 4 (320) (563)
=N Pd Share of (profit)/loss of a jointly
CaFl) /B8 controlled entity (255) 179
HEMHEz W& Gain on disposal of property (65,516) —
EREE Foreign exchange loss 168 1,281
EEELRE: Changes in working capital:
HthEERD Decrease/(increase) in other assets
(12 0) 1,105 (36,787)
FERD,(Em) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 15,034 (5,163)
W EE ABRERS Decrease in amount due from
a jointly controlled entity 255 147
FEUBR TR R Lt FEUR X (Increase)/decrease in trade and
(18 m) B other receivables (4,441) 1,427
PEBRAA R H b FX  (Decrease)/increase in trade and
(R ) /18 other payables (3,134) 3,166
REEBMEEZRE  Cash generated from operations 82,064 69,485
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19. B RRF R H A BB K

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

rEE ENNE
The group The company

—E--f —ET——fF ZEB-ZFf ZE——F

2012 2011 2012 2011

T T Fr Fr

$/000 $7000 $/000 $7000

FEAS BR X Trade payables 4,138 5,178 - =
Hib B RIER Other creditors and accrued

EitER charges 50,184 51,943 2,253 2,330

54,322 57,121 2,253 2,330

BHRERNRARAMEMREGAR-FA

BE -

ENERAREMENREEE S BN RRRE

settled within one year.

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors

ERZERBRDOMAOT : with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet
date:
rxEH
The group
—B-CfF —E-—F
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
REBERE 2RI Outstanding balances aged:
308 Within 30 days 3,353 3,598
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 531 1,072
#1890 H Over 90 days 254 508
4,138 5,178




20. EBERMKEF

(a)

AEBEREEBGRFIE DB TTEURA)
HREB(EBRA) EBREEREAZ
EEFHTRHMELABEHE ((RESS
gl BESTHELHBUZTAEE
ZREMPBNGE - RIBRESFE
EBEIREESEREEBBEARAZ5%M
ZiTEER BEESABBERALRA
20,0007C ° 38 1&E & 5t &) 2t 57X 0 B BE R
E °

TEZHBLARCSEHAM T RFER
ZREMRNEE - WEHB QR ARDE
BEFBF A TREELRQZTE
R HARTIENSERE -

REEBREXBCWBELRZEECDE
BE2HERE TRASKRAEE 2 REM
METE - MEAREAMS R ERNRE
ZERERAEFTHRE Zo%H  BEM
REBRREIRBEZEARKERS
7 o
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20 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to

the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act. The
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees that choose to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution
deposited into individual pension accounts at the

Bureau of Labour Insurance.
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20. BERKEF (&) 20

(d) PAZT IR B 1 Bz & T 2 B i 3 3R
BFAS R RABEEAE (THROE
) WEARAREIZTEKHEFH 2
ETHOKAPRABEHR  REPR
DEERG EHREAZHEERAR
WmERA - MEAREARNRE  HEER
KXNHIRARR2BRALBE-—FINE
R -

BREmEN  AEBEYBEEMARESRE
KBRANRZEMBEREE -

REARGFEZHARELFTHARS

21. URAFAARZBRABERKIS 21
AARR=BEZ-_F-—A-THAKMKN—IEE
PRBEST 8l ([5%sT &) » AN =A% 08 IR A
FTHEEZ2HE  FRARSHAEEELE
RS BREE - ZtEBRMBHREN
WHR+FEREK -

RIEZTE A 2R ESEREITHIEQEM
ARABIEEAHBLRAZ2HES - THA
EEABE (BRES) IEASHREY
AEBMERERZ HERD - BHERD - KEB
FEERHBREUZBARDESSMEE
HE 2 ADBHRM o RERAHIERER - A&
ABBARARZMA.00TESERBREZNR

&

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

(d) Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. The
subsidiary and the employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-

retirement benefits beyond their contributions.

Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the group.
The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of ten

years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time employees,
executives or officers, including the directors of the
company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance
of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to the company

by way of consideration for the grant.
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LRAFRARZREERTS (F) 21 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

BRECOTEEAROZEE REHEAR The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal

HREXFAzWHERRERE AR AER value of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the

ZHROPEBEXFA2FYRTE(URSER Stock Exchange on the date of grant and the average

Z=)e closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the

five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

BREMTEATEAFE2REDRE M There is no minimum period for which an option must be
RETRRHBRESAEZOSBRERSS held before it can be exercised and the options are
AHEZHRARTE  HEZBRIEEBEE exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
REERE BHET+F  c SHBREGHETH each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
BHEARFURBE —RRG - not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted. Each option gives the holder the right

to subscribe for one share.

(@ BREZH (@) Movements in share options

—E-C-F —E——F

2012 2011

A £ gE|

Number Number

RFER At beginning of the year 5,800,000 5,900,000
FRTHE Exercised during the year (5,800,000) (100,000)
REER At end of the year - 5,800,000
R=EZA=+—HBHEB2BERE Options vested at 31 March - 5,800,000
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21. URABFANRZROERRK 5 (&)

21

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

b)) REFACHFEZBREZHERREME

(b) The terms and conditions of the share options that

mE existed at the year end are as follows:
—E-C—fF —E2——F
THEE 2012 2011
RHBAH THREHE Exercise price A #E
Date of grant Exercisable period $ Number Number
—EE-_FNACH “ERFMAZL=AE 1.157T - 5,800,000
“E-—fWA—-H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012

(0 RENBRETEZFE:

(c)

Details of share options exercised during the year:

RITERZ

BRME Y B
TEE Market value Fr 8 K8
TR Exercisable per share at Proceeds #A
Exercise date price exercise date received Number
$ $ $
—2--f=A=++tH 1.157T 2.047T 6,670,0007T 5,800,000

27 March 2012

(d)

HRAEBERA(EBUHRELER) E2
SRR BEEZ A2 BIE MR
X ARBYERFER-BE_F+—
ARE 22 EBRERDEMRAS

(d) The group has not recognised any expenses in respect

of these share options, which were all granted prior to

November 2002, as it took advantage of the

transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 2, Share-based

payment.
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22. GREERBRATRZHAER 22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(@ HMAEEEEBRATZAHPBEGE: (a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
represents:
AEE
The group
e —E——fF
2012 2011
Fr T
$000 $000
TEERBAEH Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
B for the year 9,065 5,729
ENEHNEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (1,610) (2,541)
7,455 3,188
BHBIRIBIE Taxation outside Hong Kong 3,592 6,399
11,047 9,587
Rk : Representing:
BB IE Tax recoverable (1,065) (334)
FE A5 B¢ 18 Tax payable 12,112 9,921
11,047 9,587
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22. GREERBRATRZHMER (&)

(b)

ERRELFEHAER QM :

ey
RAFEEGAAESERRR 2B
FieRam, (A8 2ERBHREH
BEHMT :

22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The group

The components of deferred tax liabilities/(assets)

recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

FESRAE
REXHE REER
Depreciation R&AE KB
inexcessof ~ EfEM¥ Futre  FEEN  HMHEEFE
the related  Revaluation benefits ~ Unrealised Write
depreciation of oftax  profitkon  down of ag
allowances  properties losses inventories  inventories Total
r r r Tr r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000
R=Z-ZEMA—H At 1 April 2010 (2,193) 25,868 (680) (1,475) (1,880) 19,640
BRETNR/ GTA) Charged/(credited) to
profit or loss 113 = 410 (172) (1,745) (1,394)
kR0 Charged to reserves - 18,432 - = = 18,432
RZE-—-§=A=+-H At 31 March 2011 (2,080) 44,300 (270) (1,647) (3,625) 36,678
R=E--£MmA—H At 1 April 2011 (2,080) 44,300 (270) (1,647) (3,625) 36,678
BREEHRGEA) /K (Credited)/charged to
profit or loss (814) - 270 111 (2,394) (2,827)
kR0 Charged to reserves - 7,419 - = - 7,419
R-E-—#=H=+-H At 31 March 2012 (2,894) 51,719 - (1,536) (6,019) 41,270
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22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(continued)
FEE
The group
—B—CfF —E2——-fF
2012 2011
Fr T
$/000 $/000
REEERERBRZEL Net deferred tax asset recognised on
FEBEEFSE the balance sheet (8,972) (6,793)
REERBRERZEL Net deferred tax liability recognised
FEHAaBETE on the balance sheet 50,242 43,471

41,270 36,678
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22. REEERBRATZHED (&) 22 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(continued)

(0 REIELEFREREE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
BREFAMEIOZEFHE  AEER In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
RABRAERTINERFUEEREAEL note 1(0), the group and the company have not
FREBERE : recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the

following temporary differences:

rEE N
The group The company

—E--—f —E——H - —E——%&

2012 2011 2012 2011

Fr Fr Fr Fr

$/000 $000 $/000 $7000

B EE Tax losses 89,880 113,710 4,777 10,944

WEZNHEE Depreciation in excess of
TERBE the related depreciation

allowances 149 54 - _

90,029 113,764 4,777 10,944
AERREEEATEELEFEFER Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
ZEBREZAFREMZFIE33,103,0007T $33,103,000 (2011: $25,778,000) which can be carried
(ZZ&——%1:25,778,0007T) ° IRIEIEAE forward up to five years from the year in which the loss
BIEHE B > 88%856,777,000T (=ZF—— originated. The remaining balance of $56,777,000 (2011:
£ :87,932,0007T) M £ fE w A o $87,932,000) does not expire under the current tax

legislation.
23. EX - REBRRE 23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@ EEHH2B (@) Movements in components of equity

FEBGAEEBEBOREIRFEZ The reconciliation between the opening and closing
HEBNRGEEEREHER - FQAEES balances of each component of the group’s
BORENRFELE2BBHFERNTX - consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below.
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23. X RERKRE (&)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@ EZBH2LHGE) (@) Movements in components of equity (continued)
ZNN The company
Rx  ROEE HH8ER  REER LARRER
Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
T S T N
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZE-ZFMA-Az&H Balance at 1 April 2010 2,821 58,601 61,572 139,408 262,402
ZEB-BF/--FrEESD: Changes in equity in 2010/11:
FR2ENGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = = 59,745 59,745
REBREABRTZIRG Shares issued under share
(Wit23() option scheme (note 23(c)) 1 114 - - 115
EEEREZRE (WE230)0)) Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
(note 23(b)(ii)) - - - (28,203) (28,203)
REEEERZRE (HE230)1)) Dividend declared in respect of
the current year (note 23(b)(i)) - - - (11,285) (11,285)
R-B--£=A=t-He&H Balance at 31 March 2011 2,822 58,715 61,572 159,665 282,774
R-E--ENMA-AzEH Balance at 1 April 2011 2,822 58,715 61,572 159,665 282,774
ZB--F/-CEZEREE: Changes in equity in 2011/12:
ER2ARELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 81,200 81,200
REBRETABRTZRG Shares issued under share
(Hi23(0) option scheme (note 23(c)) 58 6,612 - - 6,670
EEEREZRE (WiE230)i) Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year
(note 23(b)(ii)) - - - (36,677) (36,677)
REEEERZRE (HE230)1)) Dividends declared in respect of
the current year (note 23(b)(i)) = = = (31,034) (31,034)
R-B-Z£=A=t-H&H Balance at 31 March 2012 2,880 65,327 61,572 173,154 302,933
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23. BA BERRL (F) 23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
by BE (b) Dividends
(i) BNELEEZRRZEAFERE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—g--f —B——%
2012 2011
T T
$7000 $'000
EERRIKMAFHRE  Interim dividend declared and paid
BRI ERSW of 5 cents per ordinary share
(Z2——%:8R (2011: 4 cents per ordinary share)
EERAL) 14,107 11,285
EERRIKMAHRRE  Special dividend declared and paid
BRI E R of 6 cents per ordinary share (2011: Nil)
(ZZE——F 1 |) 16,927 =
REERBREZDIKARE Final dividend proposed after
RESREERI24L the balance sheet date of 12 cents per
(Z=2——%F 8K ordinary share (2011: 13 cents per
EER1340L) ordinary share) 34,552 36,677
65,586 47,962
REEBEZEZD R Z KRR EL The final dividend proposed after the balance
REFEHBRIARAG - sheet date has not been recognised as a liability

at the balance sheet date.

(i) ENERAEZRREZ L—BHE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
ERE  WRAKFEEZERRKN company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

—E--fF —E-—fF
2012 2011
Fr T
$/000 $000
BRLE—BEEFE  EHM Final dividend in respect of the
ANF SRR previous financial year, approved
RERESR134L and paid during the year, of 13 cents
(ZF——%: per share (2011: 10 cents per share)
R 104L) 36,677 28,203

122




Annual Report 2012
AR BE AR i

B 285 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23. BE  BERRS (&) 23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(© B=& (c) Share capital
(i) ZEREZRITERA (i) Authorised and issued share capital
—g8-CF “2-—-F
2012 2011
R & E R #E
Number Number
of shares of shares
Tk T Tk T
000 $000 000 $'000
EE Authorised:
SREMB.0ITZEBER  Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
BRTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
REERK At beginning of the year 282,130 2,822 282,030 2,821
REBRETERTZ Shares issued under share
R4 (Hii21(2) option scheme (note 21(a)) 5,800 58 100 1
REER Atend of the year 287,930 2,880 282,130 2,822
ETERSEANEEERTEERZ The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
BRE  BEALAAERLERITE receive dividends as declared from time to time
—ZRER -FEZEREALT and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
PR EESERSES of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the company’s residual assets.
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23. B ERKE (#)
(0 B&(#&)

(ii)

RIGIBIRES B ZEITZREG
RZZE-—Z—F=A=++t8 UK
f86,670,0007C 1T 48 IR #E R BB
5,800,000 A AT 2 E Bk - Hp
58,000 T 5T A B A K 87%86,612,000
T AR RERF o

(d) HEEEREH

(i)

(ii)

B3 aE

REHEEHEQATE  ROGER
ARPRFARATZBRE  EEER
RARBREAHME  XATNEMNE
ORISR EEAREKBERSD
EEZERE RO ZESTUET
BRARMBG 2FHNEH DR

HftfA
HttBEER-_ZZT -8
“thRAERZASEEAMKE

ZHBARZRAEEERLES
REZARACBRTRAZEHEZ
E8 o

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 27 March 2012, options were exercised to
subscribe for 5,800,000 ordinary shares in the
company at a consideration of $6,670,000, of
which $58,000 was credited to share capital and
the balance of $6,612,000 was credited to the

share premium account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the shares of the company issued in exchange
therefor pursuant to the group reorganisation

which became effective on 25 January 2002.




23. BEX - RERKRE ()
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(iii) BB 52 1

ErREESMERRES BRI
EBRMBERREECERLERE - &
REEME I ARETERRER -

(iv) ZEBENE

(v)

RENTBECEEAZHEZE
B OARQARZHEKMBATAERL
MEZERGBLAE 2R AREER
SRBIRBREINES -BER
U REBESELARFERBEZ
B (RPEERTTE) 210%8#
AEEEERN BEERESCER
HEREFTMERZ50%H 1k o It
BESTAFAEEERERAN
RERAZR HENBARZES
EUMBEREBREEFEBIR
IHFRENES R-2TZ2RE
TAZ+TLtHBIEAE B-F
ERF-A—BE EEERTE
BETEEM - B UL E BT R
REANESFEHEE-

THREZYE G HE

NEET R L it ]2 32 Y B
B UREREMFFEERLHBR
BEY PR BT BER (MEE1(g)
BRI o
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out

in note 1(r).

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to wholly-
owned foreign investment enterprises, the PRC
subsidiaries of the company are required to set
up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
equals to 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses and to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and

no transfer to staff general fund was made since.

Land and building revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).
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23. X RERKRE (&)

(d)

(e)

()

HEEERBN (&)

i) BHEE
BERBRRIERRER ST _F—
A-TER4ENZEEEAFIKRE
ZHBARAER 2AHEEFESR
RATHBEEAREZERTRAG
CHEZEZH BHRGBARHE
R REER -

A it 53 K 7 4%

R-ZEB—-—H=F=+—8 " GJ2KRFR
AR MR Rz #E2E%300,053,000
JT(=ZF——% :279,952,00070) ° R&
EH® BEEERIRAREARESRI2
W(Z=——F :8RI13ML) - &H B
34,552,0007C (=& ——%F : 36,677,000
7T) (MEE23(b) - HKEEREFERARE
EHzEE-

BExEE

FEEEEEACERBRNRELE
BREEBEBRBHFECEEELE M
EREARKEREEZERRRBEE
BERUNGERTESHE  HEASRRA
EOHRRASHMBRESTEATRAE -

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(®

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
therefor pursuant to the group reorganisation
which became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $300,053,000 (2011: $279,952,000).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 12 cents per share (2011: 13 cents
per share), amounting to $34,552,000 (2011:
$36,677,000) (note 23(b)). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(f) Capital management (continued)
The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory returns
from internal capital, the group is not heavily financed

by external borrowings.

During 2012, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2011,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders or sell assets to increase

the cash level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The
group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.
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24, cREREERAAE(E

(a)

FERAR
AEBZFERABTIEHERERRA
B RELE - EEECHERR2EE
BE IHZEEERARSERERE-

MEVWERREMERRMS @ S$EHE
REHETSEZEECEFETEE
E o ST EETREFBEREIHE
R EE  ARBERARMEE D - dat
REREFHEENRFENRSEEFR
KEFMENCERE - ZZSBERRBEHE
BREE H 30290 AEE - RABMEI K
EERECEBAALERAAEER
BRATRTE-—SEE -AEEATHE
MEBEERERAREMERR 2Tl E
S UBRRBRTAIKESEFELZN
WEESE -

RITER-—REFETIRRENHFA
BT Al BEEREYAERREHFH
THRETREZEE -

REER  AEEZBAEBARIKRE
A 5 Bl 4k FE UL BR TR I H  PE W R A2 58
26% (ZF——F 16%) R24% (=&
——% 125%) °

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, 6% (2011: 6%) and 24%
(2011: 25%) of the total trade and other receivables
was due from the group’s largest debtor and the five

largest debtors respectively.
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(a)

(b)

FERR(HE)
BAEERBEEBEEEBRAZS
BMEEZIREEDR - AEE WL EREHRE
AEAEERALRAAAHEERABHN
PR -

FEAKEFEYHERRRREME
BWHEIBzFERBZE-—PEBRE
BRKIEE17 ©

REE T E R
FEECHRREREERDESEER
LREGRFEARSHE  UESFHER
B eRBEEER-

TREREAEERADANREEE B KT
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group or

the company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s and
the company’s non-derivative financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flow (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the

group and the company can be required to pay:
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24. TRAEREER D AE (7

(b)

=

Moiselle International Holdings Limited

= 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
RBESRAR () (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
A58
The group
—E-CF —E--F
2012 2011
HEERi$] TARITR
Bemi Bem
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
L —ERE
BRERA fERz  BEBA £EHZ
) REE R RHE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
or on BE  carrying oron BE  caying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
i i i T Fr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
e R A AR TR 5 Trade and other payables 54,322 54,322 54,322 57,121 57,121 57,121
N
The company
—E-CF —E--F
2012 2011
HEERiE] AARTR
Bemi Befd
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
“ERg —ER3
BEEN £HAY  BEEN LERY
2L REE ) REE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
or on B carrying oron BE  canying
demand Total amount demand Total amount

S * A A A R ¥
$000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000

BARAR RN

Trade and other payables 2,253 2,253 2,253 2,330 2,330 2,330
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk
The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

interest-bearing financial assets.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile

EZREE of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets at
the balance sheet date:
rEE
The group
—B-CF —2--%
2012 2011
BBA= ERAE
Effective Effective
interest Tr interest T
rate $000 rate $'000
EEfZemEE " Fixed rate financial assets:
-BIER - Deposits with banks 2.37% 175,068 2.10% 71,143

(i) BEEZHT
RZE-—Z—F=A=+—8 " f&&
MEEREH TH-—BHTF &
HaAgREZRETE 22BN
T AEBzBRBBEINRREE
R 2 B, R #1,751,0007T
(Z&2——%F :711,000) &
1,751,000t (=& ——% : 711,000
JT) °

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
$1,751,000 (2011: $711,000) and $1,751,000
(2011: $711,000) respectively.
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24, cREREERAAE(E

(c)

(d)

RIE R B (4)

i) SBES B ()
R A AT IS R W BB
HAIRRERF TR 2 DB
B o GURE S I ERAE BB
HEDERE  BOAREHHE
AEERELNEH A EAEE
EEAABANEEBRZSMIA -
0 A S A K B B A 2T
BAEETETAREE RSN
RIS 8 & B 2 BB &%
RARE R B SR A BRE
BEHTEEZ S HRUAZE
EYEEGH - RARINUT
——EYRE-EEET

BE¥ER
FEESRcEWARIEZERBERSE
EEREBEE  FAXREMNFEUNE
(RZRXEMELIFEEER 2HEE
W)TEZBRIE  BARERRESE
BRMEL - S| EABZERETERX
T BT R o

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

()

(d

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the group which expose the group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk arising from floating rate non derivative
instruments held by the group at the balance
sheet date, the impact on the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2011.

Currency risk

The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros and

Sterling pounds.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

24, cREREERAAE(E

(d) E¥ER A
MUBTERIEER 2 EEERME

(d) Currency risk (continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong

BRE TERRBUNETRBEI  REHEE
RBEHGLUB TRETFHE - HRBTE
X ERERBEAFERZER
BEREREHEARE o BT R RETT
BEZ2XEME HRZAEXRZELTE
K EBBARFARZEERABRTK -

RUAARBERIEEE 2 EEERM
5 BRANBRGEZEEEREERE
TREN HtbR G KREBHUAAREE
EeBANBRTEZEEEREERR
SME  EEERRMAEZEYRERT
* o

Tl

AEEASEBARREERRER S
B——F4R -

Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars,
except for certain purchases from Europe. Given that
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be
any significant currency risk associated with such
United States dollars denominated transactions. For
transactions denominated in Euros and Sterling
pounds, since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2011.
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24, cREREERAAE(E

(d)

B¥ER (E)

(1)

FrRIE 2 B m B
TRAEAKENEE A I I LA
ERYRERNTTENCEREES
BEMEAZZIERBELFAD
fre TRIAEEEEAEHHER
AMEHER (AERERRA R
BRRMFREN—BD) MELEN
Bk TRNSENRFLERAZE
RAMBEREZI 2R -EER
BEREIIMBRAZHBHRERAS
SEN2IEEMELEMNEZRL T
BEAER-

B BRI EL A B 5K

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Trade and other payables

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s significant
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. The exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For
presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
translated using the spot rates ruling at the year
end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the group’s presentation

currency are excluded.

rEE
The group
FrEE 2z ERR
Exposure to foreign currencies
(XE#SIR)
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—F--F —F-—-F
2012 2011
B R B R
Sterling Sterling
Euros pounds Euros pounds
T Tr T T
$7000 $000 $'000 $'000
1,836 1,109 890 1,218
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24, SREREERAARE (& 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
d) E¥mEEE) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) BEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRETAEEREERRAEX The following table indicates the instantaneous
Bz HIEERRERSBHAE change in the group’s profits after tax and
B 2 BR A 1K 08 R R AR B2 R 2 BD B retained profits that would arise if foreign
FE CRIEMERSHEERST exchange rates to which the group entities have
Bopbtms ERIFBIRESR significant exposure at the balance sheet date had
ZENBEERAFIZET LA changed at that date, assuming all other risk
HEB EERBRZE - variables remained constant. In this respect, it is

assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar

against other currencies.

—E-Cf —E--f
2012 2011
Ex REGEN REEN Ex RBE®EN REET
xR/ B/ L/ GEH)/ (ED)/
(T¥) B Bm (T5) )l 2
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/  (decrease) (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/

in foreign increase increase in foreign increase  increase in

exchange inprofits inretained  exchange in profits retained

rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits

i i r Tr

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

B Euros 10% (153) (153) 10% (74) (74)
(10)% 153 153 (10% 74 74

EY Sterling pounds 10% 93) 93) 10% (102) (102)
(10)% 93 93 (10)% 102 102

135




136

Moiselle International Holdings Limited
e B AR AR 2 WD

S 385 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5] 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24, cREREERAAE(E

(d)

(e)

B¥ER (E)

(i) HBEEZH (E)
ERFEVN 2O MEREARER
BERUER DEERTENELR
VIEREFEAZERGBRBBIT 2
Baod -

e

BREINCBRRIEERZEH
ERARENFEXAEEMFRLR
FEAEASEHEIERR S
BMITE BEEERBULFEETSR
BERZHEEBFEMNENRE
WERIE - b0 AT R B IEEE BRI
MBLAR M BRERBERNEE
ZESNERMEE ZERE - ZED
WU ——F 2 - BT -

ARME

FESMIAYREAR-E——FR
—®——F=B=+-AZARETE
BEAERZBEIIE - HEAT 265
BEIEM B REETERS - BRE
TN BERZZARELRES -

&b

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(e)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the balance

sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to currency risk at
the balance sheet date, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the group which
are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into
the group’s presentation currency. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2011.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2012 and 2011. Balances with subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed repayment
terms. Given these terms, it is not meaningful to

disclose their fair values.
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25 COMMITMENTS
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

rxEH
The group
e —E——fF
2012 2011
T T
$’000 $000
[EHES Contracted for 2,321 150,467

by M=ZZBE—=-FE=A=+—10 RETAE
BRECHELBARAF ZREHEENSK

(b) At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

BEWMT payable as follows:
rEH

The group
=F-=F —F-——F
2012 2011
F F5
$/000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 112,037 104,242
—FHBEEFR After 1 year but within 5 years 141,945 93,615
BRAE Over 5 years 2,446 _
256,428 197,857

REBREEHEEARETYE - ZEH
HN—ROLR/RP—ZE1F LR WE
ENERMAGRREN - HEMREER
REFHAE  URRHSHEE -

The group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. These leases typically run for an initial period of
one to five years, with an option to renew the leases when
all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually

adjusted annually to reflect market rentals.
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25. KIE (&)
(b) (%)

B EX B &RERENTI  AREEA
REXFEHETHEYERLE -—EB D
EEERBE N RBEZEIE -

26. REERE 26

(@ RIZE—Z-ZF=A=+—H0 AREAHRE
FErEMBARZERTHRERMEATE
R o

LR T RE 4 550,690,0007T (=&
——%F :48,190,0007t) * R=ZE—=&
=A=+-—8 > E¥#%5,293,000T (=
ZT——% :15,168,0007T) BB A

b)) BE-ZE-—-—F=ZBA=1+—-HILEEH
B AARSH—BHERD —R2EN
BLARREERMRBRH 2 EAEERRK
BHoZMEREHE—RE -KR=_2F—=
F=A=+—H  BEEEMEA955,0007T
(ZZ&——% :2,546,0007T) °

ROFUEEREZESER - ZEXSL
FRDNFAUEREN - AR ARERE
(ERETERNENR/ 2/ T A - #R
Rt 8 MBERSAITEBUDRE
HEBZERS - At - BEAERILEIIE
EREERUAAETH -

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of turnover for certain

leased properties.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2012, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries’
banking facilities were secured by corporate

guarantees provided by the company.

The above banking facilities, amounting to
$50,690,000 (2011: $48,190,000) were utilised to the
extent of $5,293,000 (2011: $15,168,000) at 31 March
2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the company
has also issued a single guarantee to a supplier against
obligations or sums payable for goods and services
supplied to a wholly owned subsidiary. At 31 March
2012, such obligations amounted to $955,000 (2011:
$2,546,000).

These guarantees were issued by the company at nil
consideration. The transactions were not at arm’s
length, and it is not possible to measure reliably the
fair value of these transactions in accordance with
HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement: Financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly the guarantees have not been accounted

for as financial liabilities and measured at fair value.
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Annual Report 2012
AR BE AR i

B 285 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA % 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

HEBARZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
=F-=F —F-——-F
2012 2011
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
REMEZHESBWA Rental income from an investment property 473 473
ExEacHERX Rental expense for director’s quarters 996 996
PR 75 & U A Service fee income 803 600
BARRE N TGI L Z2HE WA - HEBE XK Rental income, rental expenses and service fee income with
BRBBWATLRITANSBERR 2K related companies were at terms mutually agreed by both
BE - parties.
TEEEAEMHS (b) Key management personnel remuneration

TEEBEASHE (BERE7AKREX
NFADBDHITESZBB)NOT :

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

=F-=F —F-——-F

2012 2011

Fr T

$000 $'000

EHESREF Short-term employee benefits 13,559 13,645
BEEESRER Post-employment benefits 60 59
13,619 13,704
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28. EERBRERAL 28
MR-ZZE—-—F=F=+—0  ESAREEE
ZEESDRARELEZERA L BSuper Result
Consultants Limited » —RAEBHERRFHS
MBS 2 A B o 52N B IR AR S A0 B 3
i 2 BF IR o

29. BE-ZE——F=A=t+—HLFEEHE 29
B REMZIERT - HEEARZREZ
AREXE
EEZEVERXTIZAY  EESHMASY
EEMZEEIRZEMGER 258Kk
FIEEARBE-_T-——F=A=1+—ALF
EMRER  BEMAREZEMHEHRRER - Z%
ERUT 2B RITEEATRERAEES
g :

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2012, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which

may be relevant to the group:

RT3 BH
H2EEBZ

S HEEX
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BBUBREEANE7R/2HTA HE-THEEZEBE/ZBITAX —E-—FtHA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets 1 July 2011
(BREHERE R EHREZZS - Bt 2 ERmEA 225 2874 “E--f+tA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
(BBUBRELR)F 105/ FE I H#H % —E-=%-HA—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(BRBUBHEERF R/ HELHS

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

(BBUBRELR)E 125/ Bt L a2 e 1% &

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

1 January 2013

—E—-=%-A—H
1 January 2013

—E—-=%-8A—H
1 January 2013
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29. BE-_E——H=HA=+—-HLEEEHE 29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
HEXLRER BT HEEIARREZ AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
AR E (F) EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012

(continued)
R T5AH
B2EMBZ
B HEEXR

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRMB/RELRE 13K/ A LETES —2-=%-A—-H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
(BRETTER)E27 R/ B BHK —£-=%—-8—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements 1 January 2013
(BBEFER)E2N/BHELTIREELAZRE] —2-=%-A—-H
HKAS 28, Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
(BBEERDE 195 (KRB /ESHEF] —£-=%—-8—H
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013
(BRUMBRELNE/ R/ HMTA KE-RHELHBEEREHMER/2BITAE —2-=%-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2013
(BEBUBHEER) —FENFE_F——FHHZFENE —2-=%-A-H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
(BBEERENN/EHITA 25 -HHLTHEEREME R 2BIX —E-mFE-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 1 January 2014
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29, BE-E—_—F=A=+—HILFEEEHE
ENRERZIERT - FHILERARZEZ

RS (AF)

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2012
(continued)

N TN= -

F BB

S HBEER
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BRMBHRELRE IR/ ZHTA/

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

—E-HF—-HA—H
1 January 2015

(BBUBRELENEINR/2H LA /R(EBUBREED)
FIREMITA  KE-BILENARRBERERE 2B A —E-HF¥-A—H

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and

HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures 1 January 2015

REEMBREFERBZSBIT RIBEARE
RERPBz2EE HRBRRAEEEZSE
AIRHIEERRRUARE CEEXREARMHE
MRRELERTE -

142

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application but is not
yet in a position to state whether these amendments and
new standards would have a significant impact on the

group’s results of operations and financial position.
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets

and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

REEREBZHE- March 2012 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.
¥E Results
BHZ=A=+—-HLEFE
Year ended 31 March
=EB-CF SER--F ZE-TF SERAF SERAR
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Fr T T T T
$000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $/000
(E751)
(Restated)
EER Turnover 455,718 486,088 439,599 423,088 415,464
ReERA Profit from operations 49,446 87,648 58,006 27,902 57,959
mE A Finance costs (1) (1 3) (141) (266)
BIEEERRZ Share of profit/(loss) of a
=R/ (E18) jointly controlled entity 255 (179) (90) — —
THREBEYRIREME  Net valuation gains/(losses)
ZhERE (F8) on land and buildings and
B8 investment properties 3,790 5,000 5,349 (381) 4,649
HEM 2 W Gain on disposal of
property 65,516 - - - -
B BE A % Profit before taxation 119,006 92,468 63,262 27,380 62,342
Fis% Income tax (11,856) (13,910) (8,867) (7,323) (10,043)
FREA Profit for the year 107,150 78,558 54,395 20,057 52,299
BRER Earnings per share
E-WiN Basic $0.387T $0.287T $0.197T $0.077C $0.197T
BE Diluted $0.387C $0.287C $0.197C $0.077C $0.187C
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BENEE Assets and liabilities
=A=+-H
As at 31 March
EF-CF SER--F ZE-TF SERAF SERAR
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Fr T T Fr T
$'000 $000 $7000 $000 $000
(&%)
(Restated)
BEEE Fixed assets 402,467 368,726 267,972 214,856 246,931
Hith&EE Other assets 12,915 50,096 13,255 14,226 20,519
EEFBHEE Deferred tax assets 8,972 6,793 5,258 3,002 3,227
REBEEZEE Net current assets 306,489 216,495 215,629 167,265 157,609
EERAE Total assets less current
BfE4E liabilities 730,843 642,110 502,114 399,349 428,286
*RBEE Non-current liabilities (50,242) (43,471) (24,898) (15,395) (19,204)
680,601 598,639 477,216 383,954 409,082
(&S Share capital 2,880 2,822 2,821 2,821 2,821
R Reserves 677,721 595,817 474,395 381,133 406,261

680,601 598,639 477,216 383,954 409,082

Bt - ARERERMCEBSTHERDE 1258 77
HIzB] R-E——FAEEERHE
STECR AR RIR(E BT ERI) 4057 &£
BYEIUDAARBARZRENEZRLER
HeBE-_E-ZEF=-A=1+—HILEEZ
BEECHEHAZ - ERBE-ZEBAE=
A=+-BLEERBEFEZEIE > BR
HPR2EERBXBEHBRR 2R - 8§
EENERIE

Note: In order to opt to early adopt the amendments to HKAS 12,
Income taxes, in 2011 the group changed its accounting policy
for recognising deferred tax on investment properties carried at
fair values under HKAS 40, Investment properties. Figures for the
year ended 31 March 2010 have been adjusted. Figures for year
ended 31 March 2009 and prior years have not been restated as
it would involve delay and expenses out of proportion to the
benefits of shareholders.
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